
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov


1 VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING MINUTES 

2 MONDAY, APRIL 14, 2014 
3 SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 

4 UNAPPROVED VERSION 
5 
6 The April 14, 2014 meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees was called to order by 
7 Village President Dave Lienau at 6:06 PM. 
8 
9 Present: President Lienau and Trustees Pam Abshire, Scott Baker, John Clove, Pat Duffy, 

10 Donna Scattergood and Shane Solomon. 
11 
12 Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Finance Director Juliana Neuman, and 
13 Janal Suppanz, Administrative Assistant. 
14 
15 Others: Nora Zacek, Laddie Chapman, Chris Hecht, Nate Bell, Ron Kane, Curt and Roxie 
16 Wiltse, John McMurray and three other individuals. 
17 
18 Approval of minutes as published: 
19 As to the minutes for the March 18, 2014 meeting of the Village Board: 
20 A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Solomon to approve the minutes for the March 18, 
21 2014 meeting of the Village Board as presented. Motion carried - All ayes. 
22 
23 Comments and Correspondence: 
24 Lienau  asked  if  anyone  in  the  audience  wished  to  address  a  non-agenda  item.  No  one 
25 responded. He then requested that Solomon, who had decided not to run for another term, step 
26 forward, and read a “Thank You” letter which had been signed by him and all the other 
27 Trustees aloud. He also presented an inscribed plaque to Solomon on behalf of the Village. 
28 
29 Jackson pointed out that copies of pleadings pertaining to the case which is entitled “In the 
30 Matter of the Foreclosure of Tax Liens Under Wis. Stats., §75.521 by Door County” had been 
31 included in the meeting packets, and the Board members jointly reviewed those documents. 
32 
33 New Business Items: 
34 Item No. 1. Swearing in of newly elected Trustees: 
35 On April 1, 2014 Duffy and Abshire were re-elected and Nora Zacek was elected as a new 
36 Trustee for the Village of Sister Bay. They will all assume their new duties on Tuesday, April 15, 
37 2014 and will serve two year terms on the Board. Therefore, they were sworn in by Suppanz. 
38 The other Board members welcomed Zacek and indicated that they look forward to working 
39 with her. 
40 
41 Item No. 2. Discuss and consider a motion to approve Resolution No. 283, Mutual Aid Box 
42 Alarm Service: 
43 Emergency management best practices dictate that plans of action should be put into place well 
44 in advance of a disaster. Ensuring that aid may be reciprocated from adjoining jurisdictions 
45 provides  a  safety  net  to  disaster  response.  A  MABAS  Agreement  would  allow  the  Fire 
46 Department to aid other “stricken” units throughout Wisconsin and Illinois in the event of a 
47 disaster, emergency or  man-made catastrophe, and a draft  of such an agreement  and an 
48 applicable Resolution was included in the meeting packets. The Fire Chief has recommended 
49 that the Resolution be approved. 
50 

2



Minutes of the April 14, 2014 Meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees 

51 

-2- 

 

 

 

1 A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Village Board passes and adopts 
2 Resolution No. 283, which approves the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System (MABAS) Agreement 
3 which was reviewed at this meeting, as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 
4 
5 Item No. 3(a). Discuss and consider a motion to allocate funds for various major projects: 
6 The Finance Committee has been considering a number of funding mechanisms for planned 
7 public improvements, and Neuman and Jackson explained what those mechanisms are. 
8 
9 A motion was made by  Duffy, seconded by Solomon that the Village Board accepts the 

10 following recommendations  which were made by the Finance Committee with respect to 
11 funding of upcoming major projects: 
12 
13 1.  $365,000 of the funds derived from the Stewardship Grant shall be re-allocated from the 
14 Waterfront Development line in Capital Project Reserves to cover the Village’s portion of 
15 the current phase of the Bay Shore Drive project, which should be completed by June of 
16 2014; 
17 2.  The remaining Stewardship Grant funds shall be used to finance a portion of the Beach 
18 Expansion Project, and that project shall be completed with new grant funds and/or 
19 bank loan financing; and, 
20 3.  The proposed Canterbury Lane/Maple Drive bypass shall be funded with a re-allocation 
21 of $115,000 from the Fire Truck Reserve Account. 
22 
23 Motion carried – All ayes. 
24 
25 Item  No.  3(b)  Discuss  and  consider  a  motion  to  approve  proposals  for  the  Village 
26 Hall/Boathouse laterals, street repairs and downtown development: 
27 Plans for the Beach Expansion Project require moving of the Village Hall/Boathouse sewer and 
28 water laterals in order to locate a storm water outfall near the beach. 
29 
30 Village roads took a “beating” during the winter months, and Scandia Road and Woodcrest 
31 Drive are definitely in need of repair. A proposal was received from the Door County Highway 
32 Department  for  the  necessary  repairs,  and  that  document  was  presented  to  the  Parks 
33 Committee, which has recommended that both of the roads be repaired ASAP with extra base 
34 materials being utilized on Scandia Road as well as Woodcrest Drive. The suggested repairs 
35 should hold up while work is done on the highway reconstruction project. 
36 
37 The Economic Development Committee has recommended that a proposal from VandeWalle & 
38 Associates to recruit developers be accepted. Two of the affected property owners have agreed 
39 to help pay the associated costs, and a detailed Memorandum of Understanding will be entered 
40 into with both of them. Clove voiced concerns about the Village spending a large amount of 
41 money on marketing private properties. 
42 
43 A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Abshire that the Village Board accepts the 
44 following recommendations which were made by the Finance Committee with respect to work 
45 related to the Bay Shore Drive Project and downtown redevelopment: 
46 1. Harbor Construction’s quote of $15,800 for installation of new sewer and water laterals 
47 to serve the Village Hall and Boathouse is accepted; 
48 2.  The Door County Highway Department’s quote of $94,960 for repairs and addition of 
49 extra gravel to the bases of Scandia Road and Woodcrest Drive is accepted; and, 
50 

3



Minutes of the April 14, 2014 Meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees 

-3- 

 

 

 

1 3.  The proposal from VandeWalle & Associates to recruit developers for two downtown 
2 parcels for $25,000 is accepted, on the condition that the Village’s share of the related 
3 expenses shall not exceed $15,000. 
4 Motion carried – All ayes. 
5 
6 At 6:59 P.M. a brief recess was taken and the Board reconvened at 7:05 P.M. 
7 
8 Item No. 9. Consider a motion to approve Resolution No. 285 pertaining to a wireless 
9 telecommunications site license with Door County Broadband, LLC 

10 NEWWIS  has  utilized  the  Village’s  water  tower  for  placement  of  its  telecommunications 
11 equipment  for  a  number  of  years.  Door  County  Broadband,  LLC  has  recently  acquired 
12 NEWWIS, and Nate Bell, the new owner, would like to maintain the agreement that was in 
13 place with NEWWIS. Bell is proposing that for each renewal term his license fee be increased 
14 or decreased by the Federal Consumer Price Index. This type of an arrangement would allow 
15 the Village to continue to receive some internet service from the new firm for its outlying 
16 facilities, and will promote the expansion of a Door County business. A draft of a proposed 
17 contract was provided to the Board members prior to this meeting. Discussion took place 
18 regarding the terms of the contract, and the Board members indicated that they believe the 
19 State’s CPI rate should be used. Bell indicated that he has no issues with that amendment. 
20 
21 A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Solomon that the Village Board approves the 
22 contract with Door County Broadband, LLC which was reviewed at this meeting as amended. 
23 Motion carried – All ayes. 
24 
25 Item No. 4. Discussion and public hearing regarding consideration of a motion to approve 
26 Ordinance  No.  222,  which  amends  and  recreates  §18.33(d)  of  the  Municipal  Code  – 
27 Exemptions, with respect to direct sales of fireworks: 
28 Item No. 5. Discussion and public hearing regarding consideration of a motion to accept the 
29 recommendation  of  the  Fire  Chief  to  approve  Ordinance  No.  223,  which  amends  and 
30 recreates a portion of Chapter 22 of the Municipal Code – Fire and Explosive Hazards: 
31 Item No. 6. Discussion and public hearing regarding consideration of a motion to approve 
32 Ordinance No. 224 amending and recreating sections of Chapter 30 of the Municipal Code – 
33 Loud Noises Prohibited: 
34 Item No. 8. Discussion and public hearing regarding consideration of a motion to approve 
35 Ordinance No. 226 amending and recreating section of Chapter 66 of the Zoning Code – Use 
36 Restrictions; Temporary Uses: 
37 Sister Bay is a major tourist destination, yet does nothing to celebrate the 4th  of July Holiday. 
38 Gills Rock, Baileys Harbor, Fish Creek, Egg Harbor and Sturgeon Bay all promote tourism 
39 around the Independence Day Holiday with paid, professional fireworks shows, and for quite 
40 some time several members of the Parks Committee have been recommending that some type 
41 of special 4th  of July event be scheduled here. Sister Bay did little to differentiate itself from 
42 other communities around the 4th   of July, nor did it promote the festive atmosphere and 
43 hospitality that visitors to the Village have come to expect. It is Jackson’s contention that given 
44 the recent adverse impacts of reconstruction on retailers and other businesses in and around 
45 Sister Bay, an event which enhances traffic and causes Sister Bay to become known for both a 
46 distinctive retail opportunity and an event that is unique could be fortuitous for everyone. 
47 Therefore, he is recommending that “Pyro Palooza”, a “family fireworks ignition day” be 
48 conducted out at the Sports Complex on July 6, 2014.  No alcoholic beverages will be allowed 
49 on the grounds during “Pyro Palooza” and no firecrackers will be sold. 
50 
51 

4



Minutes of the April 14, 2014 Meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees 

51 

-4- 

 

 

 

1 Prior to coming to Sister Bay Jackson ran a fireworks business in North Carolina and would like 
2 to open such a business here. In accord with his contract he is required to inform the Village 
3 President of any secondary employment or business ventures he is considering and did that. He 
4 also contacted the Village Attorney regarding his plans and was informed that conflict of 
5 interest or ethical issues will not come into play. In order for fireworks to be sold anywhere in 
6 the Village, Municipal and Zoning Code amendments will be required, and to avoid any 
7 appearance  of  impropriety  Jackson  did  publish  Public  Hearing  Notices  regarding  all  the 
8 amendments he is proposing. Drafts of all the previously mentioned Ordinances and applicable 
9 amendments were included in the meeting packets. All of those documents do contain one 

10 year sunset clauses, so if any issues do arise they will be addressed in a timely fashion. 
11 
12 Discussion took place regarding Jackson’s proposal, and during that time he noted that he has 
13 discussed this issue with Christ Hecht, the Fire Chief, who sent the letter of support which was 
14 included in the meeting packets. Anyone wishing to purchase fireworks in the Village would be 
15 required to obtain a permit at the Administration Office. The Plan Commission has already 
16 considered this issue and recommended that the proposed regulations be approved. 
17 
18 Duffy pointed out that he is one of Jackson’s “biggest supporters” and believes it’s wonderful 
19 that he wants to bring more activity to the Village, but is hearing comments that some citizens 
20 have concerns about any type of fireworks being sold and/or ignited in the Village, as no matter 
21 how careful you are, safety issues will come into play. People have also voiced concerns about 
22 the propriety of the Village Administrator asking for a number of regulation amendments which 
23 will be of significant personal benefit to him. Another area of concern is the fact that even 
24 though one must be 18 years of age to purchase fireworks, there are a lot of teenagers who 
25 “hang around” the beach and downtown area during the summer months. It is entirely possible 
26 that some of those individuals will have an adult friend(s) purchase fireworks for them and then 
27 ignite the fireworks somewhere where there is absolutely no supervision. 
28 
29 Scattergood and Abshire agreed that safety issues will come into play if fireworks are allowed. 
30 Scattergood also suggested that the Village “take a step back” and consider what other type of 
31 family oriented activities or events could be conducted at the Sports Complex around the 4th of 
32 July holiday. 
33 
34 Lienau stated that it was his idea to create a legal fireworks launch site out at the Sports 
35 Complex on the 4th  of July weekend. He saw such an activity being conducted in another 
36 community, and that event was very well attended and quite successful. 
37 
38 Solomon voiced concerns about the fact that there is potential for fireworks to be ignited in 
39 other areas of the Village. He sees no sense in creating regulations which quite likely will not 
40 even be enforceable as the Sheriff’s Department simply does not have sufficient manpower. He 
41 also believes the suggested permitting process appears to be quite “muddled” and may not even 
42 work or be efficient. 
43 
44 Clove voiced concerns about tents being utilized for firework sales, which would be contrary to 
45 a number of existing Village regulations. Such structures would definitely not be fireproof or 
46 secure. 
47 
48 Lienau asked that the Board members carefully consider all the comments which are made 
49 during the public hearings and basically ask themselves the following questions before making 
50 a decision regarding Agenda Item Nos. 4, 5, 6 and 8: 

5



Minutes of the April 14, 2014 Meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees 

-5- 

 

 

 

1 1. Should fireworks be allowed in the Village? 
2 2. Does the Village want to sponsor an event where fireworks can legally be ignited? 
3 3. Should the Village Administrator  be allowed to operate a fireworks business  in the 
4 Village? 
5 
6 At 7:51 P.M. Lienau called the public hearing regarding consideration of a motion to approve 
7 Ordinance  No.  222,  which  amends  and  recreates  §18.33(d)  of  the  Municipal  Code  – 
8 Exemptions, with respect to direct sales of fireworks, to order. 
9 

10 Jackson noted that a draft of Ordinance No. 222 was included in the meeting packets and read 
11 the proposed regulations aloud. 
12 
13 Nate Bell of 10785 Pheasant Court indicated that he is a member of the Plan Commission and is 
14 aware of the history behind the fireworks sales issue. The main area of concern voiced by the 
15 Plan Commission with respect to fireworks in the past was safety. He believes it will be good to 
16 create a safe and legal place for people to purchase and ignite fireworks in the Village, as 
17 everyone will benefit from the increased traffic. 
18 
19 Curtis Wiltse indicated that he owns property which is directly adjacent to the Sports Complex. 
20 As long as the grounds are cleaned up and the Fire Department is involved he doesn’t have a 
21 problem with “Pyro Palooza” being conducted at all. 
22 
23 John McMurray indicated that a few years ago neighbors of his ignited fireworks illegally. He 
24 lodged a complaint with the Sheriff’s Department but got no response as officers simply were 
25 not available. He is very concerned that there is potential for a number of dogs, cats and other 
26 pets to become very frightened if ignition of fireworks is allowed in the Village, which can lead 
27 to a number of behavioral and health issues, and, in some instances pets may even “run away”. 
28 
29 At 8:02 P.M. Lienau asked if anyone else wished to comment regarding this issue, and when no 
30 one responded he declared that the hearing on Ordinance No. 222 was officially closed. 
31 
32 * * * * * * * 
33 
34 At 8:03 P.M. Lienau called the public hearing regarding consideration of a motion to approve 
35 Ordinance No. 223, which amends and recreates Chapter 22 of the Municipal Code – Fire and 
36 Explosive Hazards, to order. 
37 
38 A draft of Ordinance No. 223 was included in the meeting packets and Jackson read the 
39 proposed revisions to Chapter 22 aloud. 
40 
41 Chief Hecht stated that he believes the previously mentioned revisions will definitely take safety 
42 into consideration as significant oversight is provided for. Further, if it is extremely dry the Fire 
43 Department does have the authority to shut “Pyro Palooza” down. Hecht believes it will be a 
44 good thing to have a safe and controlled place for people to ignite fireworks in Northern Door 
45 as the Door County Sheriff’s Department simply does not have the manpower to enforce 
46 fireworks violations around the 4th of July. 
47 
48 At 8:10 P.M. Lienau asked if anyone else wished to comment, and when no on responded he 
49 declared that the hearing on Ordinance No. 223 was officially closed. 
50 
51 * * * * * * * 

6



Minutes of the April 14, 2014 Meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees 

-6- 

 

 

 

1 At 8:11 P.M. Lienau called the public hearing regarding consideration of a motion to approve 
2 Ordinance No. 224, which amends and recreates Chapter 30 of the Municipal Code – Loud 
3 Noises Prohibited, to order. 
4 
5 A draft of Ordinance No. 224 was included in the meeting packets and Jackson read the 
6 proposed revisions to Section 30.11(6) aloud. 
7 
8 John McMurray reiterated his previously mentioned concerns about pet health and safety. 
9 

10 At 8:14 P.M. Lienau asked if anyone else wished to comment, and when no one responded he 
11 declared that the hearing on Ordinance No. 224 was officially closed. 
12 
13 * * * * * * 
14 
15 At 8:15 P.M. Lienau called the public hearing regarding consideration of a motion to approve 
16 Ordinance No. 226, which amends and recreates sections of Chapter 66 of the Zone Code – 
17 Use Restrictions; Temporary Uses, to order. 
18 
19 A draft of Ordinance No. 226 was included in the meeting packets and Jackson read the 
20 proposed revisions to §66.0302 aloud. He also answered questions the Board members had 
21 about some logistical issues associated with fireworks sales. 
22 
23 No members of the audience commented, and, therefore, Lienau declared that the hearing on 
24 Ordinance No. 226 was officially closed at 8:24 P.M. 
25 
26 * * * * * * * 
27 
28 A motion was made by Abshire, seconded by Duffy that Ordinance No. 222, Ordinance No. 
29 223, Ordinance No. 224 and Ordinance No. 226 are all denied. Motion carried with Solomon 
30 opposed. 
31 
32 At 8:35 P.M. another brief recess was taken and the Board reconvened at 8:45 P.M. 
33 
34 Item No. 7. Discussion and public hearing regarding consideration of a motion to approve 
35 Ordinance No. 225 amending and recreating sections of Chapter 66 of the Zoning Code – 
36 Other On/Off Premise Signs With a Permit: 
37 The Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project and utility line burial will cause disruption of 
38 normal traffic patterns, and the changes in rights-of-way will also cause significant changes in 
39 locations/placement of ground signs. A draft of regulations which should alleviate some of 
40 these problems was included in the meeting packets, and the Board members jointly reviewed 
41 that document. 
42 
43 At 8:51 P.M. Lienau called the public hearing regarding consideration of a motion to approve 
44 Ordinance No. 225, which amends and recreates the sections of Chapter 66 of the Zoning 
45 Code relating to other on/off premise signs which are allowed with a permit to order. 
46 
47 Nora Zacek asked if the new regulations would only apply to the construction area, and 
48 Jackson responded that it would apply to the entire Village. 
49 
50 At 8:56 P.M. Lienau asked if anyone else wished to comment, and when no one responded he 
51 declared that the public hearing was closed. 

7



Minutes of the April 14, 2014 Meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees 

-7- 

 

 

 

1 A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker that the Village Board approves Ordinance 
2 No. 225, which amends and recreates the sections of Chapter 66 of the Zoning Code relating to 
3 other on/off premise signs which are allowed with a permit, as presented. Motion carried – All 
4 ayes. 
5 
6 Item No. 10. Consider a recommendation from the Plan Commission to approve Ordinance 
7 No. 227, which pertains to an Amended Development Agreement with Properties of Sister 
8 Bay for the Wild Tomato: 
9 Britt and Sara Unkefer of Properties of Sister Bay have requested that they be allowed to work 

10 on their construction project for the Wild Tomato in two phases rather than one to facilitate 
11 cash flow. A draft of a revised Development Agreement was included in the meeting packets 
12 and the Plan Commission has recommended that it be approved. 
13 
14 A  motion  was  made  by  Clove,  seconded  by  Duffy  that  the  Village  Board  accepts  the 
15 recommendation of the Plan Commission and approves the revised Development Agreement 
16 for the Wild Tomato project, as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 
17 
18 Item No. 11. Consider a motion to accept a proposal from Robert E. Lee & Associates for the 
19 Utilities CMOM Program: 
20 The DNR has mandated that wastewater collection system owners produce a documented 
21 program for capacity management, operation and maintenance, (CMOM), and the Utilities 
22 Committee has recommended that this occur. The Utilities Manager has also asked that a 
23 sludge handling study be completed. 
24 
25 A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Baker that  the Village Board accepts the 
26 recommendation of the Utility Committee to hire Robert E. Lee & Associates to produce a 
27 Capacity  Management,  Operation  and  Maintenance  program  report  as  well  as  a  sludge 
28 handling study. Motion carried – All ayes. 
29 
30 Item No. 12. Report on County activities from the County Supervisor, Dave Lienau: 
31 Lienau gave the following oral report: 
32 Tomorrow will be County Board Re-Organization Day and should prove to be very interesting. 
33 (At  that  meeting  Committee/Commission  appointments  for  the  next  two  years  will  be 
34 announced.) 
35 
36 Item No. 13. Review of the financial statements and consideration of a motion to approve the 
37 monthly bills: 
38 Payment approval reports for the period March 19, 2014 through April 14, 2014 were included 
39 in the meeting packets, and the Board members jointly reviewed all of those documents. 
40 
41 A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker that the monthly bills totaling $642,455.92 
42 are all approved. Motion carried – All ayes. 
43 
44 Committee Reports: 
45 (1) Administrative Committee/Public Relations Committee 
46 The Administrative Committee has not met. 
47 
48 (2) Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee 
49 The Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee has not met recently. 
50 
51 

8



Minutes of the April 14, 2014 Meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees 

-8- 

 

 

 

1 (3) Communication and Technology Committee 
2 The Communication and Technology Committee has not met recently. The next meeting of that 
3 Committee has been scheduled for 2:00 P.M. on April 24, 2014. 
4 
5 (4) Door County Coastal Byways Commission 
6 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 
7 
8 (5) DCEDC 
9 The DCEDC’s Annual Meeting was conducted earlier today at Stone Harbor in Sturgeon Bay. 

10 
11 (6) Economic Development Committee 
12 The Economic Development Committee has not met recently. 
13 
14 (7) Finance Committee 
15 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 
16 
17 (8) Fire Board and Fire District Exploratory Committee: 
18 The Fire Board will be meeting next week. 
19 
20 (9) Historical Society 
21 The Historical Society met recently but Scattergood was not able to attend that meeting. A class 
22 was conducted on the History of Sister Bay at the Village Hall last week and it was well 
23 attended. Plans are being made for the Corner of the Past’s Farmer’s Market. A new website is 
24 being developed and Board members will maintain it. 
25 
26 (10) Library Commission 
27 The Library Commission met on Tuesday, April 8, 2014 but those minutes have not been 
28 completed yet.   The Library garden grand opening ceremony has been scheduled for 11:00 
29 A.M. on Saturday, July 12, 2014. 
30 
31 (11) Marina Committee and Marina Fest Committee: 
32 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The Marina 
33 Committee also met last week but those minutes have not been completed yet. Bids have been 
34 received for repair and upgrading of the Marina bathrooms. 
35 
36 The Marina Fest Committee has not met recently. Planning is ongoing for Marina Fest and 
37 revisions will be made to the Marina Fest By-Laws in an attempt to grow the festival and “get 
38 heads in beds”. 
39 
40 (12) Parks 
41 The Parks Committee did not meet in March, and, therefore, no minutes were included in the 
42 meeting  packets.  The  Committee  did  meet  last  week,  but  those  minutes  have  not  been 
43 completed yet. An open air farmer’s market will be conducted in the grassy area by the brick 
44 parking lot on the former Helm’s property from 3:00 P.M. to 8:00 P.M. on Wednesdays and 
45 from 8:00 A.M. to noon on Thursdays. The market will be open from mid-June through mid- 
46 October. 
47 
48 (13) Personnel Committee 
49 The Personnel Committee has not met recently. 
50 
51 

9



Minutes of the April 14, 2014 Meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees 

-9- 

 

 

 

1 (14) Plan Commission 
2 The Plan Commission did not meet in March, and, therefore, no minutes were included in the 
3 meeting  packets.  The Commission did meet last  week,  but  those minutes  have not  been 
4 completed yet. 
5 
6 (15) SBAA 
7 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 
8 
9 (16) Teen Center 

10 The Teen Center Board Meeting was scheduled for March 6, 2014 but there was not a quorum. 
11 
12 (17) Tourism Zone Commission 
13 The Tourism Zone Commission met on February 20, 2014 but the approved version of those 
14 minutes is not available yet. 
15 
16 (18) Utilities 
17 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 
18 
19 (19) Administration/Compensation Oversight 
20 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The Committee 
21 will be meeting next week. 
22 
23 (20) Waterfront Oversight 
24 Due  to  scheduling  conflicts  tomorrow’s  Waterfront  Oversight  Committee  meeting  was 
25 cancelled. 
26 
27 (21) Zoning Board of Appeals 
28 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 
29 
30 Item No. 14. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 
31 Committee, official or employee: 
32 It was the consensus that the following issues should be placed on a future agenda or referred 
33 to a Committee, official or employee: 
34  Lienau asked that the Board members discuss their preferred committee/commission 
35 appointments with him ASAP as appointments will be addressed at next month’s Board 
36 meeting. 
37  The Parks Committee was directed to investigate the potential for some type of family- 
38 oriented event to be conducted around the 4th  of July holiday. That event may or may 
39 not include fireworks. 
40 
41 Adjournment: 
42 A motion was made by Abshire, seconded by Clove to adjourn the meeting of the Board of 
43 Trustees at 9:34 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 
44 
45 Respectfully submitted, 

46  

47 Janal Suppanz, 
48 Administrative Assistant 

 

I:\2014 Agendas\Board\2014\2014_04\041414 Village Board Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 11/12/13; Last Printed: 5/9/2014 2:11 PM 

10



MINUTES FOR THE JOINT MEETING OF THE VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY BOARD OF 1 

TRUSTEES & THE PARKS, PROPERTIES & STREETS COMMITTEE 2 

FRIDAY, APRIL 25, 2014 3 

WATERFRONT PARK – 2362 MILL ROAD 4 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 5 
 6 
The April 25, 2014 joint meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees and the Parks, 7 
Properties and Streets Committee was called to order by Village President Dave Lienau at 2:02 8 
PM. 9 
 10 
Present:  President Lienau and Trustees Pam Abshire, Scott Baker, John Clove, Pat Duffy, and 11 
Nora Zacek. 12 
 13 
Excused:  Donna Scattergood    14 
 15 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Former Administrator Bob Kufrin, 16 
Administrative Assistant Janal Suppanz, Village Clerk-Treasurer Christy Sully, Maintenance 17 
Department employees Steve Mann, Jim Hirschmiller, and Joe Felhofer, and Utilities 18 
Department employees Steve Jacobson, Mike Schell, and Patrick Johnson. 19 
 20 
Others:   Lainie Kufrin, Paige Funkhouser, Ron Kane and two other individuals.   21 
 22 
Comments and Correspondence: 23 
Lienau asked if anyone in the audience wished to address a non-agenda item. No one 24 
responded.  25 
 26 
New Business Items: 27 
Item No. 1. Groundbreaking Ceremony for Sister Bay’s Performance Pavilion in Waterfront 28 
Park: 29 
Lienau introduced the Village officials who were present, and also explained that the 30 
performance pavilion is being constructed thanks to the generosity of the members of a family 31 
who wish to remain anonymous. The pavilion is something which has been needed in the 32 
Village for quite some time and will be a wonderful addition to Waterfront Park. It should be 33 
completed and accessible by mid-July. Bob Kufrin, the former Administrator, and the current 34 
Administrator, Zeke Jackson, then gave brief speeches. During their speeches Kufrin and 35 
Jackson thanked the donors for their generosity, and praised former as well as present Village 36 
Board members for having the foresight to approve the purchase of the Helm’s property and 37 
authorize the construction of the performance pavilion. They also thanked Denise Bhirdo for all 38 
the time she spent on the Pavilion Project.  39 
 40 
After the speeches had been made ground breaking ceremony photos were taken and a brief 41 
recess was taken; at which time cake was served.  The Board and Parks Committee members 42 
reconvened at 2:21 P.M. 43 
 44 
Parks, Properties and Streets Committee: 45 
Item No. 1. Discuss and consider a motion to recommend approval of Resolution No. 286 – 46 
Outdoor Recreation Aids: 47 
At its March Meeting the Village Board authorized the completion of an updated version of the 48 

11



Minutes of the Joint Meeting of the Village Board and Parks, Properties & Streets Committee – April 25, 2014 

 

-2- 

Village’s Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan, and also engaged JJR to prepare an 1 
application for a DNR Knowles-Nelson grant. Passage of a Resolution to seek grant funding 2 
from the DNR and an Ordinance adopting the revised Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 3 
are now required.  4 
 5 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Parks, Properties and Streets 6 
Committee recommends that Resolution No. 286, which authorizes the Village Administrator to 7 
submit an application(s) and all required documentation to the DNR for Outdoor Recreation 8 
Aids  be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 9 
 10 
Item No. 2. Discuss and consider a motion to recommend approval of Ordinance No. 227, 11 
Adopting the 2014 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan for the Village of Sister Bay: 12 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Clove that the Parks, Properties and Streets 13 
Committee recommends that Ordinance No. 227, which adopts the 2014 Comprehensive 14 
Outdoor Recreation Plan for the Village of Sister Bay be approved as presented. Motion carried 15 
– All ayes. 16 
 17 
Village Board 18 
Item No. 1. Discuss and consider a motion to adopt Resolution No. 286 – Outdoor Recreation 19 
Aids: 20 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Zacek that Resolution No. 286, which authorizes 21 
the Village Administrator to submit an application(s) and all required documentation to the 22 
DNR for Outdoor Recreation Aids is approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 23 
 24 
Item No. 2. Discuss and consider a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 227, Adopting the 2014 25 
Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan for the Village of Sister Bay: 26 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Clove that Ordinance No. 227, which adopts the 27 
2014 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan for the Village of Sister Bay be approved as 28 
presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 29 
 30 
Item No. 3. Discuss and consider a motion to approve Contract Amendment No. 2 to the 31 
Engineering Services Agreement with Donohue & Associates for additional work to be 32 
performed on the Bayshore Drive Utilities Project in the amount of $18,800: 33 
Copies of documents related to contract amendments for the Bay Shore Drive Utility and 34 
Roadway Improvements Project were included in the meeting packets, and the Board members 35 
jointly reviewed those documents. (The documents have been labeled “Contract Amendment 36 
No. 2 to the Engineering Services Agreement for the Bay Shore Drive Utility and Roadway 37 
Improvements Project”). During the review process Jackson and Jacobson explained why the 38 
contract amendments will be necessary. 39 
 40 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Village Board approves Contract 41 
Amendment No. 2 to the Engineering Services Agreeement with Donohue & Associates in the 42 
amount of $18,800 for additional work to be performed on the Bayshore Drive Utilities Project, 43 
as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 44 
 45 
 46 
 47 
 48 

12



Minutes of the Joint Meeting of the Village Board and Parks, Properties & Streets Committee – April 25, 2014 

I:\2014 Agendas\Board\2014\2014_04\April 25 Meeting\042514 Sp. Bd. - Parks Com. Meeting Minutes - 
Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 11/12/13; Last Printed: 5/12/2014 9:53 AM 

-3- 

Adjournment: 1 
A motion was made by Abshire, seconded by Zacek to adjourn the joint meeting of the Village 2 
of Sister Bay Board of Trustees and the Parks, Properties and Streets Committee at 2:35 P.M. 3 
Motion carried – All ayes. 4 
 5 
Respectfully submitted,  6 

 7 
Janal Suppanz,  8 
Administrative Assistant9 

13



14



15



Bay Shore Dr. Committee/ 
Village of Sister Bay 

BOARD REPORT 
 

For additional information: www.sisterbaywi.gov 

             Meeting Date: 05/13/14
              Item No.: B 
 
Recommendation: That the Board accepts one of the options proposed by WPS for the burial of overhead utilities, consistent with previous 
committee actions. 
 
 
Background: The Village has retained Mr. Kufrin to aid Administrator Jackson on the Burial of Overhead Utilities Portion of the Bay Shore Dr. 
Reconstruction Project.  WPS has given options for burial and associated cost estimates.  These estimates will not be not to exceed figures, as 
WPS and the other utilities operators may encounter unexpected geological features.  This work needs to be completed before DOT begins its 
work along Bay Shore Dr. so that sidewalks and other improvements are not disturbed.   
 
Alternative A: Bury all existing overhead WPS facilities from STH 57 to Scandia Road = $547,000.00 
 
Alternative B: Bury all existing overhead WPS facilities from STH 57 to Mill Road = $275,000.00 
 
Alternative C: Remove all WPS overhead facilities on the west side of STH 42 and all overhead crossings of STH 42 from STH 57 to Scandia 
Road = $153,000.00 
 
Alternative D: Bury all existing overhead WPS facilities from STH 57 to Mill Road. Remove all WPS overhead facilities on west side of STH 42 
and WPS overhead crossings from Mill Road to Scandia Road = $341,000.00   
 
Other Utilities operators have not submitted costs as of yet.  The Bayshore Dr. Committee and Village Board will have the opportunity to re-
view these before proceeding with the project.  Attached to this report is a copy of the Finance Committee approved major projects spread-
sheet.  The Board has also taken action to approve this as well. 
 
The Village has budgeted $50,000 for this project in 2014, and has decided previously to dedicate proceeds from land sales to this project as 
well.  This, at present, is anticipated to amount to an $420,000.  From earlier estimates, the total project cost was placed at $826,000.  This 
leaves a funding gap of $356,000 which the Village will need to borrow.  Rates have recently been as low as 1.94% from our local banks, 
and staff believes that financing could be reasonably obtained.   
 
I have asked that WPS provide a contract for their portion of the burial, and that the Village be billed for work completed.   
 
   
Fiscal Impact:  Bay Shore Drive Project costs are charged to the TID Fund and may eventually be repaid through tax increments.  The Village 
will need to coordinate with DOT, WPS, and other utility companies in order to accomplish this project.  Financing will need to be secured, 
and contract documents reviewed by legal council.   
  
  
        Respectfully submitted, 
         
        Zeke Jackson 
        Village Administrator 
  

16

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


17



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
For additional information: www.sisterbay.gov 

             Meeting Date: 5/13/14 
             Item No.: 1 
 
Recommendation: That the Board of Review be called to order and then someone immediately make a 
motion to adjourn the session to Tuesday June 17, 2014 from 5 to 7 PM. 
 
Background: Pursuant to Wis. Stats. §70.47(1), the Village’s Board of Review must meet during the 30 
day period beginning on the 1st Monday of May. This year’s Open Book will take place Thursday, May 
29, 2014 from 2:30 P.M to 4:30.PM at the Sister Bay/Liberty Grove Fire Station, 2258 Mill Rd. 
 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18

http://www.sisterbay.gov/


Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
For additional information: www.sisterbaywi.gov 

             Meeting Date: 05/13/14
              Item No.: 2 & 3 
 
Recommendation: That the Board Adopt the Proposed Changes to the Board of Trustee and Committee 
and Commission Bylaws 
 
Background: The Village has conducted its local Water and Wastewater Collection Utilities business 
through a joint committee made up of representatives of Sister Bay and Liberty Grove.  Upon consulta-
tion with legal council, the intergovernmental operations agreement with the Town of Liberty Grove 
would allow the Village to conduct meetings at a separate committee in order to localize the policy 
formulation and oversight of our Water and Wastewater Collection System. This new committee would 
also allow for discussion of local issues separate from discussions on operations of the Wastewater 
Plant.   
 
Further, the Parks, Properties and Streets Committee currently has authority over Storm Sewer construc-
tion, maintenance, and assessments.  A combined Water, Wastewater Collection and Storm Water 
Committee would allow the Village to capitalize on the knowledge and expertise of its Utilities de-
partment staff in the management of Storm water issues.  The Bay Shore Dr. Project and other recent 
projects with storm water impacts has created the necessity of a committee to examine Storm Water 
simultaneously with our Water and Wastewater collection systems.  Staff proposes that the Village Ad-
ministrator, Utilities Director, Finance Director, and when appropriate, Parks Director serve as ex-
officio members of this new committee.  
   
Fiscal Impact:  Will possibly allow the Village to reduce the number of required Utilities Committee 
meetings, and will create a streamlined process for management and oversight of all underground utili-
ties controlled by the Village Government.   
  
  
        Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
        Zeke Jackson 
        Village Administrator 
  

19

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


 
 
 
 

20



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 2 

21



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 3 

22



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 4 

23



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 5 

24



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

26



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 8 

27



 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

28



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 2 

 

 

 

 

 

29



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 3 

30



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 4 

31



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 5 

32



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 6 

33



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 7 

34



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 011414 

 8 

 

 

 

 

 

35



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
For additional information: www.sisterbaywi.gov 

             Meeting Date: 05/13/14
              Item No.: 5 
 
Recommendation: That the Board accept the recommendation of the Parks Committee and adopt Reso-
lution 286-051314, Approving the Sale of parcel 181-2600001L1 on S. Highland. 
 
Background: The Parks, Properties and Streets Committee approved the advertisement for sale of parcel 
181-2600001L1 at its January 8, 2014 meeting.  The property was advertised for sale to the highest 
bidder by placement of a sign, and by placement of an ad in the newspaper of public record.  The 
deadline for Bids is May 17, 2014.  To date, one Bid has been submitted.   
 
Disposal of the property will decrease maintenance costs on the property, and return it to the tax rolls 
as well as provide capital in exchange for sale.   
   
Fiscal Impact:  The Village will receive substantial funds from the sale of the property, decrease annual 
maintenance costs, and could gain a few hundred dollars per year in tax revenue. 
  
  
        Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
        Zeke Jackson 
        Village Administrator 
  

36

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


Resolution Authorizing Sale of Property  
No 286-051314 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Sister Bay Parks, Properties and Streets Committee has 

recommended the advertisement for sale of a Village owned parcel on S. Highland Rd, 
Parcel Number 181-2600001L1; 

 
AND WHEREAS the Village of Sister Bay has duely advertised the sale of such 

property in a paper of record; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the 

Village of Sister Bay as follows: 

 
1.  The Village of Sister Bay hereby resolves to convey the following described 

property to the highest bidder, upon receipt of a bid at the Administrative offices of the 
Village of Sister Bay, 2383 Maple Dr. Sister Bay, WI, 54234: 

 
Parcel No. 181-2600001L1: 

 
Com NE Cor Outlot 1 Orchard; Highland Subd. Sec 8, Village of Sister Bay, 
Door County, Wisconsin. 

 
 
 

2.  The Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay authorizes the Village 
Administrator and Clerk of the Village of Sister Bay to execute conveyance documents 
to complete such transaction and to further execute any extensions, amendments, or 
modifications  in the sale documents which are not inconsistent with this Resolution. 

 
Adopted at a meeting of the Board of Trustees this   day of 

-----------' 
2014. 

 
Attest: 

 
 
 
 

Christy Sully, Clerk 
 

 
 

37



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
For additional information: www.sisterbaywi.gov 

             Meeting Date: 05/13/14
              Item No.: 6 
 
Recommendation: That the Board accepts the Door County Highway Department proposal to extend 
Woodcrest Road repairs from Autumn Court to Highway ZZ, at an estimated cost of $37,700.   
 
 
Background: At its April 14, 2014 meeting the Board voted to accept the Highway Department’s pro-
posal for repairs to Scandia Road (from Highway 42 to Woodcrest) and to Woodcrest Road (from 
Scandia to Autumn Court), at an estimated cost of $94,960. However, that proposal did not include the 
remaining Village portion of Woodcrest Road, which has also taken a beating during the recent detour 
period. The revised estimate for these road repairs totals $124,660. While both Scandia and Woodcrest 
have been in need of major repairs for many years, their service as a detour route during the Bay Shore 
Drive Utility project has certainly added to the damage. It is therefore proposed that up to $25,000 of 
the road repair costs be charged to the Bay Shore Drive project. 
 
As discussed at the April 14 Board meeting, the Village has $88,606 available in Capital Project Fund 
reserves for street resurfacing, as well as an LRIP grant of $15,000, for a total of $103,606. An addi-
tional $25,000 would more than cover the entire cost of the work. 80% of that amount, or up to 
$20,000, would be charged to the Utility portion of the Bay Shore Drive project and up to $5000 to the 
Stormwater portion of the project.  
 
   
Fiscal Impact:  Bay Shore Drive Project costs are charged to the TID Fund and may eventually be re-
paid through tax increments. 
  
  
        Respectfully submitted, 

         
        Juliana Neuman 
        Village Finance Director 
  

38

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



Sister Bay & Liberty Grove Fire Board Meeting 
April 21, 2014 

 
The meeting was called to order April 21, 2014 at 8:00 am by Lou Covotsos 
 
Roll Call: Lou Covotsos, Pat Duffy, Nancy Goss, Scott Baker, Frank Forkert 
 
In attendance Chris Hecht, Bill Randall 
 
A motion was made by Nancy Goss to approve the agenda, seconded by Frank Forkert. Motion passed 
with no discussion. 
 
A motion was made by Lou Covotsos to approve the minutes of the previous meetings, seconded by 
Nancy Goss. Motion passed with no discussion. 
 
There was no public input. 
 
Discussion Items: 
 
1) Chief’s Report 

a) The run totals were passed out. We have added mutual aid calls to the list. The calls are still at 
1/3 village 2/3 town. The village is slightly higher on EMRs call because of the Scand. 

b) The new SCBAs are here and in service. The matching portion of the grant was $8,370.00. We 
are in the process of selling the old SCBAs and have received $6,300.00 and expect to get an 
additional $1,000.00. Per the grant fund documents, the proceeds from the sale of item 
replaced by the grant fund go back into the matching grant fund.  

c) FEMA communication grant (1.125 million) is ongoing. We have requested more than half of the 
funds. All of the invoices for the grant come to the fire department and we pay after the 
consulting firm approves them. Then we bill the county for the matching grant portion. 

d) The start up of community based CPR classes is in progress. We have received $2,000.00 from 
SBLGFFA and $1,800.00 from the NorDor First Responders. We have purchased the training 
manikins and training AEDs. The question was asked why we are starting this program. There 
have been several requests from business in the community for CPR classes. It is difficult to get 
NWTC to hold classes in the area when we need them. The charge for the class will be enough to 
recover the cost of student registration in the CPR program. The only ongoing cost for the fire 
department will be pay from the instructors. 

e) MAVIS was approved by the Town and the Village. The other departments in the county are in 
the process of approving MAVIS. When all of the departments have approved MAVIS we will 
submit the request to the state.   

f) We are in the process of relicensing all of the EMR and the department. This is required to be 
done every two years.  

g) We have been asked to participate in Old Ellison Bay Days to pancakes. The proceeds will go to 
Secret Santa. 

h) The will be a car show sponsored by the village on the Sunday of Memorial Day weekend. We 
will be taking fire equipment to the show.       

 
 

69



2) Clerk/Treasurer Report  
a) Copies of the first quarter’s fire calls were passed out. All of the calls are reported to NIFERS and 

the codes we use are their codes. 
b) List of checks for the first quarter were passed out. 
c) List of transactions for first quarter were passed out. 
d) A spread sheet of 2014 transactions for the first quarter was passed out. 
e) A motion was made by Lou Covotsos to approve the treasurer’s report, seconded by Scott 

Baker. Motion passed with no further discussion. 
3) Audit – Review / Accept 

a) A copy of the audit report was e-mailed to the board, town and village.  
b) It was brought up at the town meeting by Frank Forkert.  
c) A motion was made by Lou Covotsos to accept the audit report, seconded by Nancy Goss. 

Passed with no further discussion. 
4) Community Based CPR – Discussion / Action  

a) See Chief’s report   
5) Fire District – Discussion 

a) The budget projections have been updated and sent to the committee. 
b) There is some urgency in getting the agreement to be signed this year with the district being 

formed in the next few years.  
6) Set Date for Next Meeting  

a) June 2, 2014 8:00 am. Sister Bay fire station. 
 
A motion was made by Lou Covotsos to adjourn, seconded by Nancy Goss. Motion passed with no 
discussion. 
 
Submitted by 
Bill Randall 
Fire Board Clerk 

 
  
 

70



March 6, 2014 Minutes of the Sister Bay Historical Society Board of Directors 

Present: Fred Johnson, Don Howard, Catherine Peot, Linda Johnnson, Eloise Lindem, Jill Lhost, Karen 

Sunstrom, John Fletcher, Pat Wisner,  

Guests; Ron Hupe, Shari Rosenquist 

Meeting called to order at 4:00PM by President Fred Johnson. 

Motion  by Pat Wisner to approve minutes with correction of February 6, 2014. Second by Karen 

Sunstrom.  Passed.  Correction being the wording of docent to employee. 

Motion by Jill Lhost to approve treasurer’s report for March.  Second by Pat Wisner.  Passed. 

Electrical audit was requested for COTP. 

Curator report sent electronically was read. 

Advertising/Publicity report by Pat Wisner.  Ron Hupe was introduced and gave information on the 

remake of the newsletter. 

Motion by Don Howard to print and fold 1500 copies of the newsletter for distribution. Second by 

Caterine Peot. Passed 

Motion by Jill Lhost to authorize up to $500.00 for newsletter project.  Second by Don Howard.  Passed. 

No report from the Building and Grounds at this time. 

John Fletcher and Committee met to review applicants for Lead Docent.  Recommended for this position  

was Shari Rosenquist.  Motion  by Karen Sunstrom to accept the committee recommendation to hire 

Lead Docent, Shari Rosenquist.  Second Linda Johnson.  Passed. 

Motion by Jill Lhost to accept the proposed budget for 2014.  Seconded by John Fletcher.  Passed. 

Motion by John Fletcher  to accept the additional membership levels as requested by Eloise Lindem of 

$25.00 per family.  Second by Linda Johnson.  Passed. 

Motion by John Fletcher to move $10,000 to general fund from the Peg Foster Trust, recently received. 

Second by Don Howard.  Passed. 

John Fletcher passed copies of the Heritage Programs for the 2014 season. 

Eloise Lindem requested volunteers for spring cleaning. 

Motion by John Fletcher to Adjourn at 5:40pm.  Second by Don Howard.  Passed. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Lynnea Hickey 

71



Sister Bay / Liberty Grove Library Commission 
                                     Meeting April 8, 2014 
 
The meeting of the Sister Bay / Liberty Grove Library Commission was called to order by 
Virginia Phelan at 1:00 P.M. 
 
Members Present: Virginia Phelan, Betty Curzon, Allen Strack, Frank Forkert, Pam Abshire, 
Henry Timm and Ralph Blankenburg. 
 
Absent:  Margot Warch, 
 
Public Input:  None 
 
Review and Approve the Minutes of the February 18, 2014 Meeting: 
Frank Forkert moved and Virginia Phelan seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the 
February 18, 2014 meeting as corrected. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Review and Approve Payment of Bills: 

FLS Banners American Flags $192.52 
Jeffery Ward Water Leak  $50.00 
Sparkle Cleaning Service General Cleaning $660.00 
Jungwiths Ace Hardware Buckets $19.56 
Village of Sister Bay Board Erasers $7.78 
Frontier Telephone $120.04 
SimplexGrinnell Fire Monitoring $556.24 
SimplexGrinnell Sprinkler Service $662.19 
Ralph Blankenburg Virus Protector/ Postage $24.44 
Village of Sister Bay Propane $1,423.98 
Wisconsin Public Service Electric $788.88 
Village of Sister Bay Propane / Two Bills $1,754.17 

Sparkle Cleaning Service 
General Cleaning / Water 
Cleanup $1,020.00 

Jungwiths Ace Hardware Marking Paint $7.49 
Chewy & Teo Roofing Remove Snow From Roof $150.00 
Reinhard Plumbing, Inc. Thaw Water Lateral $735.75 
Village of Sister Bay Propane $650.02 
Frontier Telephone $119.01 
Village of Sister Bay Fire Sprinkler Water $110.00 
Village of Sister Bay Domestic Water $297.84 
Total 

 
$9,349.91 

 
Allen Strack moved and Pam Abshire seconded a motion to approve the payment of the bills.  
The motion passed 5-0. 
 
 

72



 

 

Librarians Report 

Statistics comparing March 2014 with March 2013. 
 
Circulation: 
2014:  4,303  
2013:  5,209  
 
People Count: 
2014:  2,937  
2013:  3,064                       
 
Overdrive: 
E-books uses:  Audio-books Uses: 
2014: 251     67 
2013: 164     39 
 
Wireless: 
2014 448 users 
2013 415 users 
 
Public Computer Use (SAM) 
2014 370 Sessions  13,259 total minutes 
2013 377 Sessions  12,994 total minutes 
 
It’s been an interesting and challenging winter for all of us.  Here at the library, we’ve dealt with 
frozen water pipes, expensive fuel, and some leaks from melting snow, along with the 
challenges of winter storms and their accompanying snowy parking lots and roads.  It’s good to 
have the winter of 2013-2014 in our rear view mirror. 
 
Audit: 
We have not received a report yet. 
 
Roof Problems: 
Ralph Blankenburg reported that we had a water leak on the southwest side of the building and 
he had the roof shoveled.  The roofers also came back the next day and broke up the ice on the 
roof.  The leaks have stopped. 
 
Ceiling Repair: 
Ralph Blankenburg reported that the ceiling has some cracks in it from the water leaks.  
Pam Abshire moved and Allen Stack seconded a motion to have Sparkle Painting Service repair 
the ceiling.  The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Accident: 
Ralph Blankenburg reported that a lady tripped and fell on a raised piece of concrete on our 
sidewalk.  It had heaved in the last week, probably as the frost started to come out of the 
ground.  Connie had taken the information and taken pictures of the walk and the lady’s 
damaged jeans and glass case.  Her Underalls were also torn.  Ralph filled out an accident 
report and turned it into the Village and they sent it to the insurance company.  Photos of the 

73



walk and damaged jeans and glass case were forwarded to the Village.  Ralph then purchased 
some orange concrete marking paint and sprayed the raised edge. The Commission will have 
the walk repaired after the spring thaw. 
 
Back Yard Project: 
Dedication date was set for July 12 @ 11:00 A.M. 
Ralph Blankenburg will setup a price of the benches and tables with pictures for us to solicit 
donations. 
 
Committee Reports: 
None. 
 
Next Meeting: 

May 13th at 1:00 p.m. 
 

Adjourn: 
It was moved by Pam Abshire and seconded by Allen Strack to adjourn at 2:30 P. M. 
 
Submitted by: Ralph Blankenburg. 
 

 

74



1 
 

MARINA COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 
TUESDAY APRIL 8, 2014 2 

SISTER BAY FIRESTATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 3 
UNAPPROVED 4 

 5 
Called to order: 2:00 P.M. 6 
 7 
Present:  Chairperson John Clove, Pat Duffy, Shane Solomon, Jeff Flegel, Fuzzy Sunstrom 8 
 9 
Excused:  Kevin Roberts 10 
 11 
Staff Members:  Administrator Zeke Jackson, Marina Manager Wendy Tatzel, Village 12 
Clerk/Treasurer Christy Sully 13 
 14 
Others:  Jim Robinson, Connie Carlson 15 
 16 
Approval of Agenda: Motion by Flegel/Second by Solomon to approve the agenda. 17 
Carried 18 
 19 
Approval of Minutes: As to the minutes for the March 18th, 2014 meeting of the Marina 20 
Committee:  Motion by Duffy/Second by Solomon to approve with corrections. 21 
Carried 22 
 23 
Comments and Correspondence:  Jim Robinson of Shoreline Charters provided Tatzel copies of 24 
the registrations for his boats and the insurance policies.  25 
 26 
Solomon provided a Marina Fest update. He spoke with Waterboard Warriors. They are “super 27 
excited” to appear again at Marina Fest. They always hold the date open as their last 28 
performance of the year. Solomon’s contact said he would send a list of all the activities that 29 
they offer along with the ski show for the Marina Fest committee to consider expanding 30 
opportunities for their guests. 31 
 32 
Business Item #1 Discussion and consider a motion on short term planning for improvements 33 
for the 2014 season. Tatzel presented to the Committee a bid for privacy partitions for toilets 34 
and showers for the boaters’ restrooms. This bid is not for the interior walls. The next bid was 35 
for the Mitsubishi Ductless Split Air Conditioning/Heat Pump System for the boaters’ 36 
bathrooms. She has another company coming out later in the week to give a second proposal. 37 
Another proposal was for the counter tops for the men’s and women’s boater’s restrooms. It 38 
included figures for the countertops in the office area. The bid showed several qualities at 39 
varying prices. Tatzel said one inexpensive alternative is to look for a remnant for replacing the 40 
back counter in the office.  Tatzel inquired if the committee had any suggestions regarding the 41 
spacing of two or three sinks in the men’s boater restrooms. The committee recommended 42 
maintaining three sinks in the area. Committee members suggested exploring the cost of 43 
natural stone. An alternative argument was made that natural stone is more work to maintain.  44 

75



2 
 

Jackson steered the committee to discuss the heating/ air conditioning units recommended for 1 
the boater restrooms. A request was made to allow Tatzel to move forward with the project 2 
and accept the lowest bidder or a Village bidder within ten percent of the quoted lowest bid. 3 
 4 
Motion by Clove/Second by Sunstrom that Tatzel can approve the low bidder for the A/C 5 
Heat Pump System after submitting requests to the local companies. 6 
Carried 7 
 8 
Tatzel is working with a local contractor to get a rough estimate on what replacing the fixed B 9 
dock with a floating dock would cost. Tatzel will get in touch with Petroleum Equipment 10 
Services to get an idea what the cost would be to install a fuel station at the end of B dock.  11 
 12 
The discussion moved along to the public bathrooms. Tatzel told the committee that the 13 
partitions are rusty and need replacing. The floor tile is separating from the concrete.  14 
 15 
Clove inquired about the office lobby/boaters lounge and the flooring. She informed the 16 
committee the tile floor in the lobby has an attractive appearance. Her minimum desire is to 17 
update furniture and update a work space with a different counter top. 18 
 19 
Tatzel informed the committee she has a strong desire to bring the public bathrooms up to 20 
code. It entails moving fixtures and removing the shower wall. At the very minimum the floor 21 
tile in the men’s public restroom and the privacy partition must be replaced. Tatzel has 22 
budgeted for these minimum updates in her five year plan.  23 
 24 
It is a desired long range plan for the marina is to have a new office building. Solomon posed 25 
the question can the Marina could afford to tear down the existing building and build new. 26 
Jackson responded that it would be dependent upon on the time scale and if there was revenue 27 
generated by fuel. It was suggested we need to get a better handle on the return on investment 28 
from fuel. Clove suggested that public bathrooms be covered by waterfront park projects. He is 29 
concerned about the experience of the transient boater guest. The committee wishes to bring 30 
boaters’ restroom up to an acceptable level. The committee desires to update the boaters’ 31 
restroom not to spend the money on the public bathrooms. Many committee members feel the 32 
Village should pay to maintain the public restrooms.  Other members countered that the public 33 
bathrooms reflect negatively on the marina if they do not have some updating.  34 
 35 
Jackson explained that the Village is dependent upon the Marina for a PILOT payment. 36 
Committee members are asking the Village to pay bathroom updates. The Village has many 37 
projects going on at one time. It is a challenge for the Village to fund the projects with the 38 
strapped tax levy. It was asked if these payments fit into the long term plan of the marina or if 39 
the PILOT payment will eventually be removed. It is not determined at this time. 40 
 41 
Motion by Solomon/Second by Duffy Repair the Public bathrooms: partitions and tile. 42 
Boater’s bathrooms: new partitions, air/conditioning, Corian counter tops; Office: new 43 
counter top. Put a list together of the final bids. Separate public cost from boater’s cost. 44 

76



3 
 

Submit to Finance Committee for approval to release the $25,000. Once funds are released 1 
Tatzel has authority to move forward. 2 
Carried 3 
 4 
Tatzel requested permission to explore how much it would cost to bring the public restrooms 5 
up to date. The committee recommends Tatzel to get a CAD drawing to update the public 6 
restroom to code with the cost to be not greater than $300.  7 
 8 
Business item #2 Discussion on comprehensive planning 9 
 10 
Tatzel will contact a local contractor to get a ball park figure on upgrading B Dock to a floating 11 
dock.  12 
 13 
Clove suggested replacing stationary piers on A dock a few each year as the budget allows. 14 
There were concerns that doing it piecemeal could cause problems down the line. Sunstrom 15 
and Tatzel voiced concern regarding long range planning.  16 
 17 
The discussion moved to the installation and profitability of fuel. Fuel is believed to be a high 18 
revenue generator. Clove has done research and created models to illustrate the profitability of 19 
selling fuel.  20 
 21 
Business Item #3 Discussion and consider a motion to recommend to the Board of Trustees an 22 
amendment to the Marina Fest By-laws. 23 
 24 
A discussion ensued to determine how many members were needed for the Marina Fest 25 
committee. Efforts were made to include the Marina Manager to receive voting rights. In 26 
addition, the committee took into account how to maintain the appropriate members for a 27 
quorum.  28 
 29 
Motion by Duffy/Second by Solomon to modify #2 to state:  Membership of the Marina Fest 30 
committee shall be the Marina Committee chairperson, member of the Parks committee, the 31 
Marina Manager and a citizen alternate. 32 
Carried. 33 
 34 
The Committee agreed to strike Item #3 of the proposed by-laws. 35 
 36 
Solomon left at 3:24. There was still a quorum present. 37 
 38 
Business Item #4 Discussion regarding marina activities with Wendy Tatzel, Marina Manager.  39 
A loyal customer has purchased a larger boat. The boat is 72’ in length. The boat is wired with 40 
100 amp service. He would like to have a 100 amp hook up dockside. He spoke with Mike 41 
Maltby, from Action Electric and requested a quote to the cost of the installation. The owner 42 
would entertain paying for the upgrade and consider making a donation. The committee 43 
suggested that once it’s installed; the Marina should advertise that 100 amp service is available. 44 

77



4 
 

Tatzel will be working three full days a week in April to catch up with the work load. She is 1 
conscious of her budgeted hours and will maintain staying within them.  2 
 3 
June reservations are down again this year. Partly due to the cold weather. There is a three year 4 
trend with minimal reservations being placed for the month of June. July is a little up for this 5 
time of year. The first week of August is booking up. The C dock slips near the launch ramp are 6 
nearly booked. Most of the reservations are from boats being hauled by trailer. Committee 7 
members suggested that once May begins that larger cruising vessels will reserve slips. 8 
 9 
Tatzel is making calls on seasonal slips. There are a couple of the 40’ slips are open. D105 is 10 
available to be transferred to a commercial slip. Tatzel will offer it to commercial slip holders 11 
for lease. One 32’ slip will be open for the season. Tatzel is going to use both sides of one of the 12 
seasonal docks: A46 and A47 as a courtesy dock. The cost is $2/hour. 13 
 14 
Tatzel will be moving back to the Marina office within the next couple of weeks. Administrator 15 
Jackson said this would be the last year that she has to make that move. 16 
 17 
Interviews will be happening in the third and fourth weeks of April. Open positions include a 18 
trainee, a full time Dock Master and an Assistant Manager. 19 
 20 
There is damage to the two floating piers at the end of A Dock. Water got in between the float 21 
and the physical pier, froze and separated the float from the pier. Steve Mann contacted Port-22 
a-Pier and requested an estimate for repairs.  23 
 24 
Door County Harbor Guide – Jackson has done a lot of leg work on getting the conversation 25 
started on its development. Old publications are no longer in production. The Door County 26 
Visitor Bureau is not interested in helping with this publication unless they get paid for their 27 
work. Tatzel sought guidance from the committee as to what they would like to see developed. 28 
The committee suggested putting together something in house or working with a graphic 29 
designer. Michigan’s guide is exemplary. It was suggested that we provide our own page to put 30 
in Michigan’s guide. Additional suggestions included networking with other marinas to develop 31 
a guide.  32 
 33 
Business Item #5 Update on reservations and opening of the Boat House. 34 
Tatzel told the committee that there are eight reservations for the Boat House for the season. 35 
The end of July into August is booked. June bookings are light. Tatzel asked the committee if we 36 
should reduce the rate for the month of September. She is budgeting a $1000 for marketing on 37 
the internet for Boat House. Tatzel is considering advertising with several different websites 38 
vendors.  39 
 40 
The Boat House needs a good spring cleaning. She is going to explore cleaning costs.  She would 41 
like to install shelving above the washer and dryer. There may be a committee member willing 42 
to donate some cabinets. There will be landscaping done outside the front entryway, new 43 
shrubs and flowers. Tatzel will probably hold off to the end of April to open the Boat House to 44 

78



5 
 

avoid paying unnecessary utilities. The Boat House official opens May 15th.  The Village still 1 
needs to have new laterals installed to the Boat House and Village Hall.  2 
 3 
Business Item #6. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to 4 
a committee, official or employee.  Discuss the development of a harbor guide and 5 
comprehensive planning.  6 
 7 
Motion by Flegel/Second by Sunstrom to adjourn at 4:07 P.M. 8 
Carried 9 
 10 
Respectfully submitted 11 
 12 
 13 
Christy Sully 14 
Clerk/Treasurer 15 

79



PARKS, PROPERTIES & STREETS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 9, 2014 2 

SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 3 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 4 

 5 

The April 9, 2014 meeting of the Parks, Properties and Streets Committee was called to 6 
order by Committee Chair Dave Lienau at 2:05 P.M.  7 
 8 
Present:  Committee Chair Dave Lienau and members John Clove, and Scott Baker. Sharon 9 
Doersching appeared by phone.  10 
 11 
Staff Members: Zeke Jackson, Village Administrator, Steve Mann, Facilities Manager, and 12 
Janal Suppanz, Administrative Assistant.  13 
 14 
Others:   Dan Roarty of Dimension IV, Alissa Jacobson, Drew Richmond of the YMCA, 15 
Paige Funkhouser and Ron Kane. 16 
 17 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 18 
Lienau asked if anyone wished to address a non-agenda item.  19 
 20 
Paige Funkhouser noted that the SBAA Egg Hunt will be conducted in Waterfront Park on 21 
Saturday, April 19, 2014. She also indicated that several people have complained about 22 
excessive amounts of dog feces being on the Mill Road sidewalk.  Jackson and Suppanz 23 
are aware of the complaints and will be addressing that issue in this week’s earned media 24 
campaigns.   25 
 26 
Jackson read an e-mail he had received from Dorner Construction concerning detour 27 
routes aloud. Clean-up should be done on April 24, 2014 and April 25, 2014.  28 
 29 
Copies of e-mails from and to Suppanz, Jan Johnson of the Town of Liberty Grove and 30 
Doug Smith of the Town of Liberty Grove were included in the meeting packets. Those e-31 
mails pertain to the collaborated Shredding Appliance Recycling Days which are 32 
scheduled to be conducted at the Liberty Grove Town Hall on Saturday, June 21, 2014 and 33 
Saturday, September 20, 2014.   34 
 35 
Approval of minutes as published: 36 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the minutes for the January 8, 2014 37 
meeting of the Parks Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 38 
 39 
Approval of Agenda: 40 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Agenda for the April 9, 2014 41 
meeting of the Parks Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 42 
 43 
Business Items: 44 
Item No. 8. Discussion regarding Alissa Jacobson’s proposal to conduct yoga classes at 45 
the beach and on the dock from June through August: 46 
A proposal from Alissa Jacobson, who would like to conduct yoga classes at the beach and 47 
on the dock from June through August, was included in the meeting packets. Jacobson 48 

80



Village of Sister Bay Parks, Properties & Streets Committee Meeting Minutes – April 9, 2014 

- 2 - 

would also like to use the Village Hall as a back-up location in case of inclement weather. 1 
Discussion took place regarding Jacobson’s proposal, and it was the consensus that 2 
permission shall be granted for her to conduct the yoga classes on a one year trial basis. It 3 
was also the consensus that Jacobson shall be charged use fees of $25 plus tax per day. 4 
Mann noted that scheduling issues may arise if mowing is not allowed during the classes, 5 
and Jacobson indicated that she is willing to work around the mowing schedule. 6 
 7 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that Alissa Jacobson is granted 8 
permission to use the Village of Sister Bay’s beach and dock for yoga classes, with the 9 
Village Hall as a back-up location, from June through August of 2014 on a one year trial 10 
basis. Jacobson shall complete and submit a Facility Use Application, and provide a class 11 
schedule to the employees in the Administration Office ASAP. A $100 security deposit will 12 
be required, and Jacobson will be charged use fees of $25 plus tax for each day that she 13 
uses any of the previously mentioned facilities. Motion carried – All ayes. 14 
 15 
Item No. 10. Discussion regarding the YMCA rack card for 2014: 16 
A draft of the YMCA rack card for 2014 was included in the meeting packets and the 17 
Committee members jointly reviewed that document. During the review process some font 18 
changes and graphic design revisions were suggested, and Drew Richmond took note of all 19 
of them. He will see that a revised draft is provided to the employees in the Village Office 20 
ASAP. 21 
 22 
Richmond suggested that the day camp hours be changed from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. 23 
versus 8:30 A.M. to 4:30 P.M. like last year, and it was the consensus that the suggested 24 
schedule revisions will be acceptable.   25 
 26 
At 2:38 P.M. a brief recess was taken and the Committee members reconvened at 2:45 27 
P.M. 28 
 29 
Item No. 1. Discussion regarding the Pavilion Project: Update on the timeline and 30 
selection of material colors; and scheduling of a groundbreaking ceremony:  31 
Dan Roarty of Dimension IV presented an updated pricing sheet for the Pavilion Project, 32 
and the Committee members jointly reviewed that document. The State Inspector has 33 
reviewed the plans for the pavilion and indicated that slightly larger landings will be 34 
required. Roarty presented samples of the shingles, stone, trim and facia which will be 35 
utilized on the pavilion. He also presented color samples for the beams and asked what 36 
was preferred. It was the consensus that the lighter paint sample which was presented by 37 
Roarty shall be utilized on the beams, that a cream color paint shall be utilized on the 38 
doors and railings, and that the reader board background shall be black felt. Discussion 39 
took place regarding the stonework pattern, and it was eventually the consensus that  40 
beach stone should not be used. 41 
 42 
The groundbreaking ceremony for the pavilion will be conducted at 2:00 P.M. on Friday, 43 
April 25, 2014. Suppanz will see that Bob Kufrin and Denise Bhirdo are invited, and will 44 
ask both of them to give brief speeches.    45 
 46 
Item No. 2. Discussion regarding resurfacing of Scandia and Woodcrest Roads; 47 
Recommendation of the Finance Committee: 48 
Scandia Road and Woodcrest Road are in dire need of repair, and a proposal which was 49 

81



Village of Sister Bay Parks, Properties & Streets Committee Meeting Minutes – April 9, 2014 

- 3 - 

received from John Kolodziej, the Door County Highway Commissioner, was included in 1 
the meeting packets.  2 
 3 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the proposal from the Door County 4 
Highway Department concerning resurfacing of Scandia and Woodcrest Roads which was 5 
included in the meeting packets shall be accepted as presented. The cost of the Scandia 6 
Road resurfacing project (from the intersection of N. Bay Shore Drive to the intersection 7 
with Woodcrest Road) shall not exceed $46,710, and the cost of the Woodcrest Road 8 
resurfacing project (from the intersection of Scandia Road to Autumn Court) shall not 9 
exceed $35,300. Motion carried – All ayes. 10 
 11 
Item No. 3. Discussion regarding an Open Air Market: 12 
The Village, with the support of the SBAA, will be sponsoring an Open Air Farmer’s 13 
Market, and documentation regarding the market, as well as a copy of the new logo for it 14 
were included in the meeting packets. The preferred location for the Farmer’s Market is the 15 
grassy area by the brick parking lot on the former Helm’s property. A JEM Grant 16 
Application was included in the meeting packets, and the Committee members jointly 17 
reviewed that document. Clove noted that he believes the close proximity of the Marina to 18 
the Farmer’s Market should have been mentioned in the grant application. One 19 
requirement of the JEM Grant is that the Village be prepared to provide matching funds of 20 
$1,500 to cover marketing expenses. The Committee members indicated that they like the 21 
Farmer’s Market logo very much, and also indicated that they believe there should be a 22 
wide variety of home grown or handmade product offerings from around the State of 23 
Wisconsin at the Farmer’s Market.   24 
 25 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Clove that $1,500 shall be withdrawn from 26 
the Various Parks Projects Account to cover marketing expenses for the Farmer’s Market. 27 
Motion carried – All ayes.      28 
 29 
Item No. 4. Update on the 6f parcel conversion: 30 
Some of the land comprising Waterfront Park will be “taken” for rights-of-way when work 31 
is done on the highway reconstruction project, and in accord with State regulations the 32 
D.O.T. must replace that land with other property which is in close proximity to a different 33 
park or Village owned outdoor recreational facility. State officials recently informed 34 
Jackson that they are considering the purchase of some property which is near the Sports 35 
Complex. Jackson will keep the Committee members advised of the status of this issue.    36 
 37 
Item No. 5. Discussion regarding Sister Bay’s Field & Street Rally, an event supported by 38 
the SBAA which will be conducted on the Sunday of Memorial Day weekend: 39 
Sister Bay’s Field & Street Rally, a car, tractor and emergency vehicle show, will be 40 
conducted in the Shopko parking lot on May 25th, the Sunday of Memorial Day weekend. 41 
Local “car guys” have indicated that there aren’t any car shows conducted on that 42 
weekend, and there are a number of “locals” who own very nice cars as well as tractors. 43 
They are all being encouraged to participate in the show. In addition to the car, tractor and 44 
emergency vehicle displays there will be a Memorial Day tribute, car and tractor poker 45 
runs, timed plow runs, 50/50 raffles, opportunities for people to “beat on a junker”, and a 46 
goat petting zoo. The Sister Bay Lions will be operating a food and beer stand, Sister Bay 47 
Mobil/Sub Express will be selling sandwiches and pizza, and Lamperts will bring their 48 
large outdoor grill. Soda and water will also be sold, “The Old Dogs That Care”, (Marines 49 

82



Village of Sister Bay Parks, Properties & Streets Committee Meeting Minutes – April 9, 2014 

- 4 - 

who regularly send care packages to active duty servicemen and women), will man an 1 
informational booth and accept donations for their cause, and Sister Bay business owners 2 
will be given an opportunity to set up displays or sale booths showcasing their product 3 
offerings. Sponsorship letters and informational packets were mailed to all the business 4 
owners in the Village last week. 5 
 6 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Clove that the Parks Committee supports Sister 7 
Bay’s Field & Street Rally, which will be conducted on the Sunday of Memorial Day 8 
weekend. Motion carried – All ayes.   9 
 10 
Item No. 6. Discussion regarding “Family Fireworks Day”, an event supported by the 11 
SBAA, on Sunday, July 6, 2014:  12 
Item No. 7. Discussion regarding amendment of §30.11(d) of the Municipal Code: 13 
Sister Bay is a major tourist destination, yet does nothing to celebrate the 4th of July 14 
Holiday. Gills Rock, Baileys Harbor, Fish Creek, Egg Harbor and Sturgeon Bay all promote 15 
tourism around the Independence Day Holiday with paid, professional fireworks shows, 16 
and several members of the Parks Committee have been recommending that some type of 17 
special 4th of July event be scheduled here for quite some time. Sister Bay did little to 18 
differentiate itself from other communities around the 4th of July, nor did it promote the 19 
festive atmosphere and hospitality that visitors to the Village have come to expect. It is 20 
Jackson’s contention that given the recent adverse impacts of reconstruction on retailers 21 
and other businesses in and around Sister Bay, an event which enhances traffic and causes 22 
Sister Bay to become known for both a distinctive retail opportunity and an event that is 23 
unique could be fortuitous for everyone. Therefore, he is recommending that “Pyro 24 
Palooza”, a “family fireworks ignition day” be conducted out at the Sports Complex on July 25 
6, 2014.  No alcoholic beverages will be allowed on the grounds during “Pyro Palooza” 26 
and no firecrackers will be sold. Anyone wishing to purchase fireworks in the Village 27 
would be required to obtain a permit. 28 
 29 
Jackson indicated that prior to coming to Sister Bay he ran a fireworks business in North 30 
Carolina and would like to open such a business here on a limited term basis. In accord 31 
with his contract with the Village, he is required to inform the Village President of any 32 
secondary employment or business ventures he is considering and did that. He also 33 
contacted the Village Attorney regarding his plans and was informed that conflict of 34 
interest or ethical issues will not come into play. In order for fireworks to be sold anywhere 35 
in the Village, Municipal and Zoning Code amendments will be required. In order to avoid 36 
any appearance of impropriety Jackson did publish Public Hearing Notices regarding all 37 
the proposed amendments. A draft copy of amendments to §30.11(d)(6) of the Municipal 38 
Code was included in the meeting packets.   39 
 40 
Discussion took place regarding Jackson’s proposals, and during that time Jackson pointed 41 
out that he has discussed this issue with the Fire Chief, who sent the letter of support which 42 
was included in the meeting packets. He also made a presentation to the Plan 43 
Commission. The Plan Commission members stated that they believe a limit should be 44 
placed on the number of large fireworks tents which will be allowed in the Village, and 45 
that anyone selling fireworks should be a Village resident or property owner. Discussion 46 
took place regarding the Plan Commission’s recommendation and it was the consensus 47 
that no more than two tents fireworks tents should be allowed. 48 
 49 

83



Village of Sister Bay Parks, Properties & Streets Committee Meeting Minutes – April 9, 2014 

- 5 - 

A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Parks Committee recommends 1 
that the Village Board approve the proposed amendments to §30.11(d)(6) of the 2 
Municipal Code which were reviewed at this meeting, on the condition that a one year 3 
sunset clause be imposed. The recommendation is also made that the Village Board 4 
consider requiring that anyone selling fireworks in the Village be a Village resident or 5 
property owner, that the number of tents from which fireworks sales will be allowed be 6 
limited to two, and that a public hearing be required before any extensions to the 7 
amendments to §30.11(d)(6) are granted. 8 
  9 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Clove that if the Village Board grants 10 
permission for “Pyro Palooza” to be conducted, no more than $750 be withdrawn from 11 
the Miscellaneous Parks Projects Account to cover costs associated with that event. Motion 12 
carried – All ayes. 13 
 14 
Item No. 9. Report from Steve Mann on fall and winter activities: 15 
Mann gave an oral report regarding the following issues: 16 

 Because of the unseasonably cold weather, spring clean-up is approximately three 17 
weeks behind schedule. 18 

 Hopefully work will be commencing on the Maintenance Building insulation 19 
project soon. 20 

 He has been seeking proposals on replacement heating equipment for the 21 
Maintenance Building. 22 

 One of the benches out at the Sports Complex was struck by a snowmobile and 23 
was damaged. Repairs will be made ASAP. 24 

 The Village’s snow fences have all been taken down and the fence posts will be 25 
removed as soon as the frost is out of the ground. 26 

 All the ice skating equipment will be put in storage soon and the soccer equipment 27 
will be put out. 28 

 Several bids were received for the 1999 Grasshopper which was advertised on 29 
Craig’s List. The high bid of $2,121.21 was submitted by James Kent.  30 
 31 

A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker that the Village’s 1999 Grasshopper 32 
shall be sold to James Kent for $2,121.21. If for some reason Kent is no longer interested 33 
in the Grasshopper, it shall be offered to the next highest bidder. Motion carried – All 34 
ayes.   35 

 36 

 Only one bid was received for the Jeep which was used out at the Sports Complex. 37 
That bid, in the amount of $300, was submitted by Mike Peters of Sturgeon Bay. 38 
 39 

A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Clove that Mike Peters’ bid of $300 for the 40 
Jeep which was used at the Sports Complex shall be accepted. Motion carried – All ayes. 41 
. 42 
Item No. 11. Discussion regarding trackless maintenance: 43 
The trackless is in need of repair again and Mann is recommending that Bruce Municipal 44 
evaluate it and provide an estimate as to the necessary repairs. It was the consensus that 45 
this shall occur.   46 
 47 
 48 

84



Village of Sister Bay Parks, Properties & Streets Committee Meeting Minutes – April 9, 2014 

- 6 - 

Item No. 12. Discussion on other parks and streets activities: 1 
Ron Kane indicated that the Information Booth will be opening on May 1, 2014 and asked 2 
that the restrooms be opened prior to that date. Mann will comply with Kane’s request. 3 
 4 
Erica Berggren has asked for permission to hold a wedding ceremony in Waterfront Park 5 
on Saturday, July 5, 2014. It was the consensus that this will not be a problem. Suppanz 6 
will discuss particulars with Berggren and see that the appropriate paperwork is completed.   7 
 8 
Item No. 13. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to 9 
a committee, official or employee: 10 
Updates on the Pavilion Project and the Highway Reconstruction Project will be provided 11 
to the Committee members on a regular basis. 12 
 13 
Adjournment: 14 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker to adjourn the meeting of the Parks 15 
Committee at 5:12 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes.  16 
 17 
Respectfully submitted,  18 

 19 
Janal Suppanz,  20 
Administrative Assistant 21 

85



PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, APRIL 8, 2014 2 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station – 2258 Mill Road 3 

(APPROVAL PENDING) 4 
 5 
The April 8, 2014 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order by Chairperson Dave 6 
Lienau at 5:34 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Chairperson Lienau, and members Pat Duffy, Marge Grutzmacher, Don Howard, Scott 9 
Baker, and Nate Bell. 10 
 11 
Excused:  Hugh Mulliken and Eric Lundquist  12 
 13 
Others:  Ron Kane, Larry Gajda and Britt and Sara Unkefer 14 
 15 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, and Administrative Assistant Janal 16 
Suppanz. 17 
 18 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 19 
Lienau asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded.  20 
 21 
Jackson read a letter which had been received from Britt Unkefer aloud. In that letter Unkefer 22 
asks that the Plan Commission consider amending the Village’s signage regulations in such 23 
fashion that businesses which border more than one street are allowed more flexibility. 24 
  25 
Approval of the agenda: 26 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Grutzmacher that the Agenda for the April 8, 2014 27 
meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 28 
 29 
Approval of minutes as published: 30 
As to the minutes for the February 4, 2014 meeting of the Plan Commission: 31 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Howard that the minutes for the February 4, 2014 32 
meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 33 
  34 
Business Items: 35 
Item No. 1. Consider approval of the Interpretive Guideline on Officially Mapped Streets: 36 
As requested Lienau, Baker, Mary Kay Shumway and Jackson did collaborate on making revi-37 
sions to the Interpretive Guideline on Officially Mapped Streets which was reviewed at the last 38 
meeting, and a draft of the revised document, which basically mirrors the document which was 39 
presented by Howard at the last meeting, was included in the meeting packets. The Commis-40 
sion members jointly reviewed the guideline and a minor typo was pointed out.  41 
 42 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Howard that the Interpretive Guideline on Official-43 
ly Mapped Streets which was included in the  packets for this meeting is approved as amended. 44 
Motion carried – All ayes. 45 
 46 
Jackson noted that after he had published the Public Hearing Notices which are the subject of 47 
Agenda Item Nos. 2 and 3 he learned that Village protocol calls for the Plan Commission to 48 
discuss potential Zoning Code amendments and only conduct Public Hearings if and when a 49 
motion to that effect has been made. This was not the case in the municipalities where he 50 

86



Minutes of the April 8, 2014 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -2-  

 

worked previously, and, therefore, he just went ahead and scheduled the hearings noted on the 1 
Agenda. He apologized for the oversight and indicated that it will never happen again.  2 
 3 
Item No. 2. Public Hearing and discussion regarding amendments to the provisions of 4 
§66.0302(d) of the Zoning Code which relate to signage for temporary uses; temporary sus-5 
pension of the number of days delineated in §66.0722(a) of the Zoning Code; and creation of 6 
a sunset clause in §66.0722(a)(1) of the Zoning Code: 7 
Jackson explained that the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction and Utility Line Burial Projects will 8 
cause disruption to normal traffic patterns. The changes in rights-of-way will also cause signifi-9 
cant changes in locations/placement of ground signs, and, therefore a draft of proposed text 10 
amendments which will allow area businesses to participate in the D.O.T.’s “In This Together 11 
Campaign”, and will relax signage standards during the construction period was included in the 12 
meeting packets. If the amendments are approved affected businesses will be allowed to apply 13 
for a Long Duration Special Event Sign Permit and display directional or location signage on a 14 
temporary basis during the construction period. The amendment automatically “sunsets” on 15 
May 25, 2016, or whenever the Village Administrator determines that the construction and res-16 
toration has ended; whichever occurs first. The regulations pertaining to signage for temporary 17 
uses would also be amended to read, “Temporary uses permitted under this section may be al-18 
lowed four temporary signs not to exceed 36 square feet in area on one side and 48 square feet 19 
in area on all sides.”. During discussion the Commission members indicated that they believe 20 
the proposed amendments will be a good thing for the entire community. They also recom-21 
mended that any applicable fees be waived. 22 
 23 
At 5:50 P.M. Lienau called the Public Hearing regarding amendment of the provisions of 24 
§66.0302(d) of the Zoning Code which relate to signage for temporary uses; temporary suspen-25 
sion of the number of days delineated in §66.0722(a) of the Zoning Code, and creation of a 26 
sunset clause in §66.0722(a)(1) of the Zoning Code to order and asked if anyone wished to 27 
comment. 28 
 29 
Britt Unkefer indicated that he is in favor of the proposed amendments and believes signage 30 
which directs people to all the businesses in the Village should be erected for the duration of 31 
the construction period. 32 
 33 
Larry Gajda, who is a member of the SBAA Board of Directors, indicated that the SBAA is also 34 
in favor of the proposed amendments.  35 
 36 
At 5:56 P.M. Lienau asked if anyone else wished to comment, and when no one responded he 37 
declared that the public hearing was officially closed. 38 
 39 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker that the Plan Commission recom-40 
mends that an Ordinance which amends the provisions of §66.0302(d) of the Zoning Code 41 
which relate to signage for temporary uses; temporarily suspends the number of days delineated 42 
in §66.0722(a) of the Zoning Code and creates a sunset clause in §66.0722(a)(1) of the Zoning 43 
Code be approved. The Plan Commission also recommends that any applicable fees be waived. 44 
Motion carried - All ayes. 45 
 46 
 47 
 48 
 49 

87



Minutes of the April 8, 2014 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -3-  

 

Item No. 3.  Public Hearing and discussion regarding amendment of the provisions of 1 
§66.302(d) which relate to direct sales of fireworks; and discussion regarding a recommenda-2 
tion from the SBAA and the SBLG Fire Department regarding “Pyro Palooza”: 3 
Jackson indicated that prior to coming to Sister Bay he ran a fireworks business in North Caroli-4 
na and would like to open such a business here. In accord with his contract he is required to 5 
inform the Village President of any secondary employment or business ventures he is consider-6 
ing and did that. He also contacted the Village Attorney regarding his plans and was informed 7 
that conflict of interest or ethical issues will not come into play. In order for fireworks to be sold 8 
anywhere in the Village, Municipal and Zoning Code amendments will be required. Since Jack-9 
son wanted to avoid any appearance of impropriety he did publish Public Hearing Notices re-10 
garding all the amendments. A draft of amendments to §66.302(d)(10) of the Zoning Code, 11 
which states that fireworks sales from a tent or kiosk with or without on-site storage for no more 12 
than 15 days be allowed as a temporary use in the B-1, B-2 and/or B-3 Districts, was included 13 
in the meeting packets.  14 
 15 
Discussion took place regarding Jackson’s proposal, and during that review he pointed out that 16 
he has discussed this issue with the Fire Chief, who sent the letter of support which was includ-17 
ed in the meeting packets. Anyone wishing to purchase fireworks would be required to obtain a 18 
permit. The Commission members noted that they believe a limit should be placed on the 19 
number of large fireworks tents which will be allowed in the Village. 20 
  21 
Sister Bay is a major tourist destination, yet does nothing to celebrate the 4th of July Holiday. 22 
Gills Rock, Baileys Harbor, Fish Creek, Egg Harbor and Sturgeon Bay all promote tourism 23 
around the Independence Day Holiday with paid, professional fireworks shows, and several 24 
members of the Parks Committee have been recommending that some type of special 4th of July 25 
event be scheduled here for quite some time. Sister Bay did little to differentiate itself from oth-26 
er communities around the 4th of July, nor did it promote the festive atmosphere and hospitality 27 
that visitors to the Village have come to expect. It is Jackson’s contention that given the recent 28 
adverse impacts of reconstruction on retailers and other businesses in and around Sister Bay, an 29 
event which enhances traffic and causes Sister Bay to become known for both a distinctive re-30 
tail opportunity and an event that is unique could be fortuitous for everyone. Therefore, he is 31 
recommending that “Pyro Palooza”, a “family fireworks ignition day” be conducted out at the 32 
Sports Complex on July 6, 2014.  No alcoholic beverages will be allowed on the grounds dur-33 
ing “Pyro Palooza”.  34 
 35 
At 6:21 P.M. Lienau called the Public Hearing regarding amendment of the provisions of 36 
§66.0302(d) which relate to direct sales of fireworks to order. 37 
 38 
Pipka Ulvilden indicated that she is “all for” anything that will bring people to the Village, but 39 
does have questions as to who firework sales and ignition will benefit in the long run.  40 
 41 
Britt and Sara Unkefer responded that they own a business in Fish Creek. Whenever fireworks 42 
are displayed in Fish Creek it is their busiest time of the year. They believe an event such as 43 
“Pyro Palooza” will benefit all the businesses in the Village as there is potential for many more 44 
people - participants as well as spectators, to be in the Village.  45 
 46 
Larry Gajda is a member of the SBAA Board of Directors. He stated that the SBAA will not be in 47 
charge of or involved with “Pyro Palooza” but does encourage activities which support the mis-48 
sion statement of the SBAA. If the event is run properly it should not be a “major headache” for 49 

88



Minutes of the April 8, 2014 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

I:\2014 Agendas\Plan Comm\2014\2014_04\040814 Plan Commission Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 04/08/2014; Last Printed: 5/9/2014 12:54 PM 

 -4-  

 

residents or business owners. Gajda did stress that he believes only Sister Bay business owners 1 
should be allowed to sell fireworks in the Village. 2 
 3 
Duffy stated that he is definitely in favor of events which will bring more people to the Village, 4 
but  has heard comments that some citizens are concerned about the safety issues which could 5 
arise if  fireworks are sold and/or ignited in the Village. 6 
 7 
At 6:31 P.M. Lienau asked if anyone else wished to comment, and when no on responded he 8 
declared that the public hearing was officially closed.    9 
 10 
A motion was made by Bell, seconded by Baker that the Plan Commission recommends that 11 
the Village Board approve the proposed amendments to §66.302(d) of the Zoning Code, on the 12 
condition that a one year sunset clause be imposed and before any extensions are granted a 13 
public hearing be conducted. The recommendation is also made that the Parks Committee con-14 
sider limiting the number of tents from which fireworks sales will be allowed. Motion carried 15 
with Grutzmacher opposed. 16 
 17 
Item No. 4. Consider an amendment to the Development Agreement for The Wild Tomato; 18 
phasing: 19 
A draft of a revised Development Agreement for The Wild Tomato project was included in the 20 
meeting packets and the Commission members jointly reviewed that document. If the agree-21 
ment is approved phasing will be done. 22 
 23 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Baker that the Plan Commission recommends that 24 
the proposed amendments to The Wild Tomato Development Agreement be approved as pre-25 
sented. Motion carried –All ayes.    26 
 27 
Item No, 4. Report by the Zoning Administrator regarding development activities, various en-28 
forcement actions, and issuance of Sign and Zoning Permits: 29 
In March a Sign Permit was issued to Second Hand Sue’s and Jackson has been meeting with 30 
some developers who are contemplating new projects. None of those projects are to the point 31 
where they can be referred to the Plan Commission yet. 32 
 33 
Item No. 5. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred 34 
to a committee, Village official or employee: 35 
There were no suggestions for matters to be placed on a future agenda, and no referrals were 36 
made to a committee, Village official or employee. 37 
 38 
Adjournment: 39 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker to adjourn the meeting of the Plan 40 
Commission at 7:18 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 41 
 42 
Respectfully submitted,  43 

 44 
Janal Suppanz,  45 
Administrative Assistant 46 

89



SBAA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 1 

THURSDAY, APRIL 3, 2014 2 

SISTER BAY ADVANCEMENT ASSOCIATION COORDINATOR’S OFFICE 3 

10668 N. BAY SHORE DRIVE  4 

  5 

The April 3, 2014 meeting of the Sister Bay Advancement Association Board of Directors 6 
was called to order by President Steve Gomoll at 8:05 A.M.    7 
 8 
Present:   Steve Gomoll, Heidi Hitzeman, Jeannie Hoffman, Larry Gajda, Drew Bickford, 9 
John Ostran, and James Larsen. Jessica Grasse arrived at 9:02 A.M.  10 
 11 
Excused:  Windy Bittorf and Tonya Crowell   12 
 13 
Absent:  Shane Solomon and Nora Zacek 14 
 15 
Staff Members:   Paige Funkhouser, SBAA Coordinator, and Janal Suppanz, Secretary. 16 
 17 
Others:  Carol Clikeman and Ron Kane 18 
 19 
Business Items: 20 
Item No. 1.  Approval of the Agenda: 21 
A motion was made by Gajda, seconded by Larsen, that the Agenda for the April 3, 2014 22 
meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors be approved as presented. Motion carried – All 23 
ayes. 24 
 25 
Item No. 2.  Approval of the minutes for the March 13, 2014 SBAA meeting: 26 
A motion was made by Ostran, seconded by Hoffman that the minutes for the April 3, 27 
2014 meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors be approved as presented. Motion carried – 28 
All ayes. 29 
 30 
Item No. 3.  Financial Report: 31 
Financial reports were included in the meeting packets, and the Board members jointly 32 
reviewed those documents.    33 
 34 
A motion was made by Gajda, seconded by Bickford that the financial reports which were 35 
reviewed at this meeting be accepted as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 36 
 37 
Item No. 4. Discussion regarding Family Fireworks Day which is tentatively scheduled for 38 
Sunday, July 6, 2014: 39 
Funkhouser, Dave Lienau, the Village President, and Zeke Jackson, the Village 40 
Administrator, have been discussing the possibility of a “Family Fireworks Day” being 41 
conducted out at the Sports Complex on Sunday, July 6th. The Fire Chief has already been 42 
contacted and agreed to have trained personnel on site. No alcoholic beverages will be 43 
allowed on the grounds when fireworks are being ignited. Anyone wishing to ignite 44 
fireworks at “Family Fireworks Day” will have to obtain a permit, and the permit fees will 45 
be $5 each. The proceeds from the event will be split between the Fire Department and the 46 
SBAA. All NFP insurance requirements will be complied with, and Curtis Wiltse, the owner 47 
of property adjoining the Sports Complex, has informed Jackson that he is not opposed to 48 

90



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  April 3, 2014 

- 2 - 

the event being conducted as long as Fire Department personnel are on site. Jackson is 1 
projecting that the economic impact of the “Family Fireworks Day”, which includes 2 
increased sales at local businesses and rentals at lodging establishments, could be up to 3 
$180,000. Public hearings will be conducted regarding “Family Fireworks Day” and the 4 
possibility of allowing fireworks to be sold in the Village. The Plan Commission public 5 
hearing will be conducted on April 8th and the Village Board public hearing will be 6 
conducted on April 14th. Fire Department personnel have already volunteered to work at 7 
“Family Fireworks Day”, so there will be plenty of help. 8 
 9 
Funkhouser presented a letter which had been received from Chris Hecht, the Fire Chief, 10 
and read it aloud. In that letter Hecht states that the members of the Sister Bay-Liberty 11 
Grove Fire Department support and intend to participate in “Family Fireworks Day”. If 12 
necessary, firefighters will provide fire suppression and first aid services, and intend to use 13 
the event as a community outreach opportunity for the Fire and EMS Divisions of the 14 
Department. They also intend to sell food and non-alcoholic beverages at “Family 15 
Fireworks Day” and appreciate the fund raising opportunity.  16 
  17 
Discussion took place regarding this issue and Ron Kane pointed out that he has heard 18 
comments from a number of concerned citizens, many of whom are elderly, that a whole 19 
series of safety issues could arise if fireworks are allowed to be sold, stored or ignited in the 20 
Village. The Board members responded that they can understand the concerns voiced by 21 
Kane, but also believe people will ignite fireworks around the 4th of July “no matter what”. 22 
They also noted that the entire business community should benefit from an event such as 23 
“Family Fireworks Day” since none of the other Northern Door communities will be 24 
having fireworks displays on July 6th. There is certainly potential for noise complaints to be 25 
filed with Village officials and/or the Sheriff’s Department, but those complaints might be 26 
minimized if an explanatory letter is sent to all Village property owners prior to July 6th. 27 
 28 
Funkhouser was asked to send a letter to Village officials in which she states that the SBAA 29 
fully supports creation of any new events which help to support and promote the business 30 
community of Sister Bay. If the Village Board grants permission for “Family Fireworks Day” 31 
to be conducted, the SBAA is recommending that Village officials see that at least two 32 
week’s advance written notice is provided to all the property owners in the Village. (The 33 
mailing of such a notice would ensure that the vast majority of people living in the Village 34 
are informed about what will be going on at the Sports Complex on July 6th, the potential 35 
economic impacts of such an event, and the emergency, medical and law enforcement 36 
responses which will be provided.) Additional education about the involvement of the 37 
Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Department and the Sister Bay Lions Club is also encouraged.     38 
  39 
Item No. 6.  Discussion regarding festivals and special events: 40 

 Easter Egg Hunt 41 
The SBAA’s Easter Egg Hunt will be conducted on Saturday, April 19th. 42 
Each of the age groups of children participating in the hunt will be assigned 43 
specific color eggs to look for. One thousand more eggs have been ordered. 44 
A spring themed cartoon showing may also be conducted after the Egg 45 
Hunt as a fund raiser for Film Fest. 46 
 47 

 Goat Parade 48 
The Goat Parade will be conducted on Saturday, May 10th. Funkhouser 49 

91



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  April 3, 2014 

- 3 - 

was instructed to ask Steve Mann, the Village’s Facilities Manager, if it 1 
would be possible for the Village’s Maintenance Dept. employees to erect 2 
the “pole goats” prior to the time that the Goat Parade isactually 3 
conducted.   4 
 5 

 Uptown Event 6 
The SBAA will be sponsoring Sister Bay’s Field & Street Rally, a car, tractor 7 
and emergency vehicle show which will be conducted in the Shopko 8 
parking lot on May 25th Local “car guys” have indicated that there aren’t 9 
any car shows conducted on that weekend, and there are a number of 10 
“locals” who own very nice cars as well as tractors. They are all being 11 
encouraged to participate in the show. In addition to the car, tractor and 12 
emergency vehicle displays there will be a Memorial Day tribute, car and 13 
tractor poker runs, timed plow runs, 50/50 raffles, opportunities for people 14 
to “beat on a junker”, camel rides, and a goat petting zoo. The Sister Bay 15 
Lions will be operating a food and beer stand, Sister Bay Mobil/Sub Express 16 
will be selling sandwiches and pizza, and Lamperts will bring their large 17 
outdoor grill. Soda and water will also be sold, “The Old Dogs That Care”, 18 
(Marines who regularly send care packages to active duty servicemen and 19 
women), will man an informational booth and accept donations for their 20 
cause, and Sister Bay business owners will be given an opportunity to set 21 
up displays or sale booths showcasing their product offerings. If any of the 22 
SBAA members would like to volunteer at the car, tractor and emergency 23 
vehicle show they are more than welcome and should contact Suppanz. 24 
Sponsorship letters and informational packets were mailed to all the 25 
business owners in the Village last week.  26 

 27 

 Ice Out Contest 28 
The Ice Out Contest boxes have all been distributed. Thanks to the efforts of 29 
Judy Steger, the Advocate is running the Ice Out Contest ads free of charge. 30 
 31 

 Film Fest 32 
Chris Opper is working on scheduling a “Shimmy Marcus Encore Night”. (Shimmy 33 
Marcus was the Movie Director from Ireland who won the “People’s Choice 34 
Award” at this year’s Film Fest.) Base Camp will sponsor that event. Further 35 
information will be provided as soon as it is available. 36 
 37 

 Concerts In the Park/Movies In The Park 38 
Funkhouser is working on the fund raising letter for the Concerts In The Park, and it 39 
should be mailed out later this month. Most of the musicians who will be 40 
performing this season have already been booked. Work should be commencing 41 
on the new pavilion soon.  42 
 43 
Funkhouser and Opper have been discussing the possibility of showing better 44 
known movies in the park this summer. Cost estimates will be provided to the 45 
Board members as soon as they are available.  46 
 47 
 48 
 49 

92



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  April 3, 2014 

- 4 - 

 Farmer’s Market 1 
The SBAA Board of Directors has decided to support and promote a weekly 2 
downtown farmer’s market in Sister Bay. It now appears that one of the Village’s 3 
employees will be managing that market, which will be open from 3:00 P.M. to 4 
8:00 P.M. on Wednesdays and 8:00 A.M. to noon on Thursdays from mid-June 5 
through October. Wednesday nights were chosen because that is when Concerts In 6 
The Park are conducted and there are generally a lot of people in town. It was the 7 
consensus that the SBAA should encourage local business owners to stay open late 8 
on Wednesdays from June through October. 9 
   10 

 Spring Social 11 
The Spring Social will be conducted on Tuesday, June 3, 2014. The event will start 12 
with mini golf  at Pirate’s Cove at 5:30 P.M., and then everyone will go to Northern 13 
Grill for drinks, heavy appetizers and socializing. 14 
 15 

 Door County Festival of Fine Arts 16 
Planning is coming along well for the Door County Festival of Fine Arts, which will 17 
be conducted on Saturday, August 9th. This year artists will be able to rent tents 18 
from the Peninsula Pacers. Musicians from Birch Creek and Jeanne Kuhns will 19 
perform. 20 
 21 

Item No. 7. Economic Development Update:  22 
Employees from VandeWalle and Associates have been asked to prepare marketing 23 
materials for the properties which have been highlighted in the Downtown Redevelopment 24 
Plan. Those materials will be distributed to developers. The Economic Development 25 
Committee should be meeting sometime in May. 26 
 27 
Item No. 8. Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Update: 28 
Funkhouser presented a construction schedule for the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction 29 
project and the Board members jointly reviewed that document. Depending on the 30 
weather, new asphalt should be installed by early May and two way traffic will resume in 31 
the downtown area by Memorial Day weekend!!  32 
 33 
Item No. 10. Discussion regarding membership renewals: 34 
Membership renewal forms and fees are coming in quite well. As of right now there is a 35 
net of six new members.  36 
 37 
Item No. 11. Coordinator’s Report:  38 
The Coordinator’s Report was included in the meeting packets, and the Board members 39 
jointly reviewed that document.  40 
 41 
Funkhouser presented a co-op ad which will appear in Silent Sports Magazine. She also 42 
presented a draft of the cover for the 2014 Sister Bay brochure. The Board members 43 
indicated that they like both drafts very much. A minor revision was suggested for the 44 
brochure cover and Funkhouser took note of it. 45 
 46 
At 5:30 P.M. on Tuesday, April 8th the Plan Commission will be conducting a public 47 
hearing regarding temporary business identification signage which will be allowed in 48 
construction zones. Anyone wishing to comment regarding this issue is encouraged to 49 

93



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  April 3, 2014 

- 5 - 

attend the Plan Commission Meeting.     1 
 2 
Item No. 12. Consider a motion to convene into closed session to conduct the annual 3 
performance evaluation for Paige Funkhouser, the SBAA Coordinator: 4 
It was the consensus that Funkhouser’s performance evaluation shall not be conducted 5 
until the May SBAA Board Meeting. Gomoll asked that anyone wishing to provide written 6 
input see that those documents are provided to him at least one week prior to the May 7 
SBAA Board Meeting. 8 
 9 
Adjournment: 10 
A motion was made by Ostran, seconded by Larsen to adjourn the meeting of the SBAA 11 
Board of Directors at 9:45 A.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 12 
 13 
Respectfully submitted, 14 

 15 
Janal Suppanz, Secretary 16 

94



DOOR COUNTY TOURISM ZONE  1 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 2 
Minutes of February 20 2014, 9:00 a.m. 3 

Paul J Bertschinger Community Center, 7860 STH 42, Egg Harbor, Wisconsin 4 
 5 

ACTION ITEMS: 6 
Larson moved and Weddig seconded to approve the agenda as submitted. Motion carried. 7 

Weddig moved and Nelson seconded to approve the January 16, 2014 minutes as corrected. Motion carried. 8 

Nelson moved and Larson seconded to approve reports and payables plus receipts to date in the amount of 9 
85,936.29. Motion carried.   10 

Starr moved and Skare seconded to  convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes, 11 
Section 19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or 12 
written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or likely 13 
to become involved; to wit: enforcement actions against lodging providers who have failed to obtain lodging 14 
permits and to timely remit monthly room tax report and tax payments. Motion carried by roll call. 15 

Nelson moved and Larson seconded to reconvene into Open Session. Motion carried. 16 

Consider a motion to take action, if required. 17 
Larson moved and Weddig seconded that Roberts take action and proceed with consulting Attorney Vande Castle 18 
regarding delinquent properties and pursue action as advised. Motion carried. 19 

Starr moved and Larson seconded to adjourn. Motion carried. 20 

Committee Members Present by Roll Call: Josh Van Lieshout, Bryan Nelson., Jeff Larson, Bill Weddig, Dick Skare, Bob 21 
Starr and Dave Holtz. 22 

Also in Attendance: Kim Roberts /Administrative Assistant DCTZC, Elizabeth Le Clair, and Zeke Jackson. 23 

Call to order 24 
Chair Van Lieshout called the meeting to order at 9:00 AM. 25 

Approval of the Agenda 26 
Larson moved and Weddig seconded to approve the agenda as submitted. Motion carried. 27 

Approval of the January 16, 2014 minutes 28 
Weddig moved and Nelson seconded to approve the January 16, 2014 minutes as corrected. Motion carried. 29 

Report from Administrative Assistant on current activities, projects and issues associated with permitting new 30 
members 31 
Roberts reported that for the report month of November she sent out twenty six (26) “No Report” letters to owner 32 
managed properties on January 10th, 2014.  As of February 7, 2014, only two (2) no reports remain for the month of 33 
November.  Unpaid taxes, fees and interest amount to $2,030.02 as of February 14th, 2014 from fourteen (14) permit 34 
holders.  Roberts went on to say that since her report was printed, two (2) notices were paid bringing down the total 35 
owed as of February 17th, 2014 to $946.37. 36 

Four (4) permits were issued since January reporting, 75% (seventy five) percent of the new permits were a result of 37 
Robert’s compliance work.  Roberts reported that she is currently at work on seven (7) unpermitted properties through 38 
compliance efforts.   39 

Roberts discussed that she has been working on replacing lost information due to the recent computer replacement.  She 40 
explained all the online history for permitted and unpermitted property advertisements could not be transferred.  She 41 
said that there was a silver lining to having to redo the information in that she has found a few properties that had 42 
deactivated their permits who are again renting.  Roberts asked if there would be any objection to adding a place on the 43 
permit application for owners to designate their online listing id’s.  There was no objection.  Roberts added that she 44 
would like to add the information to the database as well. 45 

Van Lieshout asked if a business license could be required by municipalities for properties that rent transiently.  Van 46 
Lieshout asked if Roberts would contact Attorney Vande Castle for his legal opinion. 47 

95



Discussion on Current Comparable Occupancy numbers 1 
Weddig commented that December had a nice jump in revenues resulting in an increase of 16.67% over December 2012.   2 

Van Lieshout asked the Committee their thoughts on how 2013 turned out, “How did we do”?  He went on to say that 3 
typically there are press inquiries regarding lodging revenues once year end numbers are posted.    4 

Nelson responded that it is hard to say the results aren’t rosy with a 4.1% increase over 2012.  He added that the growth is 5 
still ahead of inflation.  Nelson went on to say that it would be interesting to take a look at where Door County landed for 6 
2013 in the state market share. 7 

Jackson felt that  positive pr should always be shared. Larson added that he felt guarded optimism.  Starr felt the response 8 
should be more statistical. 9 

Roberts asked Van Lieshout if a press release should be written.  The consensus was in agreement that a press release 10 
should be composed in which statistics should be included: available nights, room filled, ADR and occupancy averages.  11 
Van Lieshout requested that the outstanding balance to be collected, compliance and growth be included in the press 12 
release. 13 

Consideration of approving reports and payables plus receipts to date. 14 
Roberts noted that there were a few out of the ordinary payments included for approval: DC Online was web hosting and 15 
domain annual fees, Baylakes Information System was an annual support fee, Cheryl Robertson amended her 2013 reports 16 
because she paid tax on tax, and Todd Mion paid October 2013 room twice so the payment is a refund for the duplicate 17 
payment. 18 

Nelson moved and Larson seconded to approve reports and payables plus receipts to date in the amount of 19 
$85,936.29. Motion carried.   20 

Report from Commissioners on Feedback from Local Boards on Recent Issues 21 
Van Lieshout said they were no concerns from his board.  He added that his board noticed that December revenues 22 
were off from 2012, but were within the expected deviation. 23 

Consider a motion to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes, Section 24 
19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written 25 
advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or likely to 26 
become involved; to wit: enforcement actions against lodging providers who have failed to obtain lodging 27 
permits and to timely remit monthly room tax report and tax payments. Motion carried by roll call. 28 

Starr moved to convene into Closed Session as per statutes named; Skare seconded. Motion carried 29 

CLOSED SESSION 30 
Consider a Motion to Reconvene into Open Session 31 
Nelson moved to reconvene into Open Session; Larson seconded. Motion carried. 32 

Consider a motion to take action, if required. 33 
Larson moved and Weddig seconded that Roberts take action and proceed with consulting Attorney Vande Castle 34 
regarding delinquent properties and pursue action as advised. Motion carried. 35 

Adjournment 36 
Starr moved to adjourn; Larson seconded. Motion carried.  37 
The meeting adjourned at 9:40 a.m. 38 
Respectfully submitted, 39 

 40 
Kim Roberts 41 
Administrative Assistant 42 
 43 

  44 

96



ADMINISTRATION AND COMPENSATION 1 

COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 2 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 23, 2014 3 

(APPROVAL PENDING) 4 

5 
The April 23, 2014 meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Administration and Compensation Committee 6 
was called to order at 2:10 PM by Village Administrator Zeke Jackson. 7 
 8 
Present: Committee Members Pam Abshire and Pat Duffy, Village Administrator Zeke Jackson and 9 
Finance Director Juliana Neuman 10 
Excused: Chairman Dave Lienau 11 
Abshire moved to appoint Duffy as Acting Chairman. Duffy seconded the motion and both agreed. 12 
 13 
Approval of the Agenda 14 
Duffy moved and Abshire seconded. Motion carried—all Ayes. 15 
Approval of the Minutes 16 
Abshire moved and Duffy seconded approval of the March 25 meeting minutes as presented. Motion 17 
carried—all Ayes. 18 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public 19 
None. 20 
 21 
Discussion Items 22 
1. Discussion on Employee Pay Scale 23 
Neuman had prepared an employee census sheet showing current wages for comparison with the 24 
Compensation Range document proposed at the February meeting. Jackson asked whether there is 25 
anything the committee would like to re-visit. Jackson himself questioned whether the high range for the 26 
Utility Manager position is sufficient, given the amount of experience and expertise required. A high 27 
level of performance on major projects has been abundantly demonstrated during recent months by an 28 
individual who is already at the top of the proposed pay range and would therefore be ‘frozen’ at that 29 
level. Duffy suggested a system of bonuses for successful completion of projects rather than a change in 30 
the range. Neuman countered with the suggestion that the maximum for that position be increased from 31 
$63,400 to $65,000. After further discussion revealed that annual COLA  raises would in effect increase 32 
the maximum pay, Jackson withdrew his concern. 33 
 34 
Neuman asked whether employees currently at the top or above the highest level for their position 35 
would be ‘grandfathered in’ and thus retain their current wage. Jackson replied that the point of this 36 
committee is to decide what constitutes fair compensation for each position. The Committee will make 37 
recommendations to the Board. At the County some individuals who were frozen at the high end of 38 
their pay scale had the right to appeal to continue to receive a COLA once the COLA outpaced  their 39 
pay. Jackson noted that pay cuts should be avoided because of the ill will that would generate. There 40 
was consensus on this last point.   41 
  42 
2. Discussion on Employee Benefits 43 
The employee census sheet mentioned above also provided information on the number of vacation 44 
days each fulltime employee currently enjoys.  The proposed policy change would limit the maximum 45 
number of vacation days to 20 after 10 years. Employees can currently earn up to 5 weeks of vacation 46 
(25 days) after 22 years. Abshire felt that those who have already achieved that level should be 47 
grandfathered in if the new policy is limited to fewer days. Duffy noted that a PTO policy would include 48 
holidays and sick leave. He feels that the current sick leave allowance of one day per month is too 49 
generous.  50 
 51 

97



2 

Neuman suggested the need for a policy regarding advance notice for taking leave time. Jackson said 1 
that employees still have to call in. Abshire said she is familiar with a system which requires the 2 
employee to apply in advance for the time off. The supervisor must then approve the request within a 3 
certain time period. 4 
 5 
Employees will expect the total numbers of PTO days to be at least equal to the number of sick plus 6 
vacation days they currently have. However, Duffy feels that the current number of days is far more 7 
than a new employee would expect. Jackson replied that the challenge is to combine pay scale with 8 
leave time so that the total package is sufficiently attractive without burdening the Village with high 9 
personnel costs. The only way to achieve this is to be generous with the leave time component, while 10 
making sure that the work gets done. Duffy continued to argue that the current total number of days off 11 
is excessive. He further stated that if, in the recruiting process, we find that we can’t get the caliber of 12 
person we need, then the compensation and/or leave time package can be adjusted. Jackson replied 13 
that hiring new people under a less generous policy would result in higher turnover and loss of 14 
institutional knowledge. Jackson believes that more time off constitutes an offer of a better life style, 15 
which is why an employee might want to live in Door County. 16 
 17 
Duffy asked what percentage of available sick days are currently used. If many of those days are not 18 
used, why offer a PTO package that includes 12 of those days? If they aren’t being used, then offering 19 
fewer days doesn’t take anything away. Jackson replied that the employees will still perceive this as 20 
something taken away. 21 
 22 
An important component of any PTO policy will be the number of days that can be carried over each 23 
year. Neuman also mentioned the policy of paying out 50% of sick leave after 20 years of service. The 24 
current liability for this is over $34,000. We’ll have to determine whether to honor that policy or not. 25 
 26 
Jackson is interested in exploring a combination short- and long-term PTO policy, to provide for sick 27 
leave in the event of a long illness. Long-term PTO could be carried over but there would be no payout 28 
at termination. A small carryover would be allowed for short-term PTO, and there would be some 29 
payout at termination since PTO would accrue according to time worked.  30 
 31 
3. Consider a motion to take action, if required. 32 
 33 
4. Matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a Committee, Official or Employee 34 
--Neuman will prepare data on employees’ use of sick days over the past 3 to 5 years. 35 
--Jackson will obtain a sample policy covering short- and long-term sick leave. 36 
--A policy on “grandfathering in” of current benefits to be discussed at a future meeting. 37 
--Health insurance rates and HRA costs to be discussed when available. 38 
--Overtime and Comp Time pay to be discussed at a future meeting. 39 
 40 
Adjournment 41 
At 3:40 PM Duffy moved and Abshire seconded that the meeting be adjourned. Motion carried. 42 
 43 
Respectfully Submitted, 44 

 45 
Juliana Neuman 46 
Finance Director 47 
Name: h:\files\active\agendas\finance\2014\2014_04\04232014 admin/comp minutes - unapproved version.docx Created: 5/21/2013 9:14 48 
AM Printed: 5/9/2014 2:18 PM Author: Juliana Neuman Last Saved By: Juliana Neuman 49 

98




